
A G E N D A  

WORK SESSION MEETING 

City of Moberly 

February 16, 2021 

6:00 PM 
  

 

Requests, Ordinances, and Miscellaneous 
1. Review of a Change Order #1 for the CDBG demolition project on first 23 houses  

2. Appointment to the Tourism Advisory Commission 

3. A Request for Street Closure for Chamber of Commerce Banquet 

4. Appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission 

5. Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit Renewal and Storm Water Management 

Plan Update 

1



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:       

Department: Public Works 

Date: February 16, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Change Order #1 for CDBG Demolition Grant Program for the first twenty-

three (23) houses.  

  

Summary: The change order is an increase of $3000. for 90 more linear feet of asbestos 

than was in the original report.  This increase will make the total amount for 

the project $124,700. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring forward to the March 1, 2021 regular City Council 

meeting for final approval. 

  

Fund Name: Structure Demolition and Debris Removal 

  

Account Number: 100.005.5418 

  

Available Budget $: 49,559.94 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report   x    Other Change Order       Passed Failed 

 

2

WS #1.



JT Holman Construction, L. L. C. CHANGE ORDER 
PO Box 591 
Macon, MO 63552 

660-651-6655 Cell 
660-385-7888 Office 
660-385-1855 Fax 

jtholman@jtholman.com 

Bill To 

City of Moberly 
demo 23 structures 

Quantity Item Code 

Miscellaneous 

CHANGE ORDER # I 

www.jtholman.com 

Description 

CITY OF MOBERLY DEMOLITION 
CHANGE ORDER # l 

Terms 

Change Order 

1400 QUINN - PIPE WRAP WAS 90 MORE LINEAR 
FEET THAN REPORTED 

Total 

Date 

10/1/2020 

Due Date 

l0/1/2020 

Rate 

3,000.00 

Thanks for your business! Please make all checks payable to JT Holman Construction, 
L.L.C. Total due upon reciept. Accounts over 30 days are subject to a service charge of 
.0208% per month. 

Payments/Credits 

Balance Due 

Invoice# 

11405 

Amount 

3,000.00 

$3,000.00 

$0.00 

$3,000.00 

3

WS #1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: February 16, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Appointment to the Tourism Advisory Commission 

  

Summary: Chris Weathers is no longer the Chamber of Commerce Board President.  The 

Chamber of Commerce Board has submitted a letter to appoint Tim Seidel to 

be appointed to the Tourism Advisory Commission. They are asking the City 

Council Council to accept this request.    Also Janie Riley term on the Tourism 

Advisory Commission will expire in March 2021.   Contact has been made 

with Janie Riley and she has indicated that she does want to be reappointed to 

the board.  Advertisement has been done and no applications have been 

received.  

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring to the March 1st Council meeting for approving of two 

individuals to the commission.  

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x    Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

4

WS #2.



 

Board/Commission Application Form 

Individuals serving on boards or commissions play an important role in advising the City Council 
on matters of interest to our community and its future. For the most part, Board and Commission 
members must be residents of City of Moberly. When a vacancy occurs, an announcement of that 
vacancy will be posted. The City Council will review all applications. The appointment will be 
made at a formal City Council meeting. Appointees serve as unpaid volunteers. 

This application is a public document and as such it or the information it contains may be 
reproduced and distributed. This application will remain active for two years and you will 
automatically be considered for any vacancy occurring during that time. 
Name of Board or Commission:  _________________________________ Date: ________________  
Your Name: _____________________________  Street Address: ____________________________  
Phone number(s): (evening) _________________________ (day) ____________________________   

Email: 

Do you live within the corporate limits of City of Moberly? Yes / No 
How long have you been a resident of City of Moberly? 
Occupation:                                                                    Employer:  ___________________________________   

Optional Questions (use back of application if necessary) 
What experience and/or skills do you have that might especially qualify you to serve on this board or 
commission? 

 

What particular contributions do you feel you can make to this board or commission? 

I will attend meetings in accordance with the adopted policies of City of Moberly, Missouri. If at any 
time my business or professional interests conflict with the interests of the Commission, I will not 
participate in such deliberations. References may be secured from the following individuals:  

1. _______________________________________  Phone: ____________________________ 

2. _______________________________________  Phone: ____________________________ 

3. _______________________________________  Phone: ____________________________ 

                               ___________________________________ 
                                Signature of Applicant 

*Additional Information may be attached to this form. 
Return to: City of Moberly, 101 West Reed Street, Moberly, MO 65270 

TOURISM 020/06/2021

JANIE L RILEY 1000 SHELBY

660-998-0869 660-263-3367

jlriley@artsappliance.com

57

OWNER ART'S APPLIANCE & FURNITURE INC.

JW & LINDA BALLINGER 660-263-7139

MARTHA CREED 660-295-4249

WALLY LANDRUM 660-263-6760

5

WS #2.



6

WS #2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Police  

Date: February 16, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Request for Street Closure for Chamber of Commerce Banquet 

  

Summary: The Moberly Area Chamber of Commerce is requesting permission to close 

the 100 block of 4th street between Rollins and Reed from 6:00 PM on Friday 

April 30 until 10:00 am May 2 for the annual Chamber Banquet.  In order to 

provide a COVID safe event and environment, they are restructuring the 

banquet. The Chamber requests permission to erect a tent in the 100 block of 

4th street to provide an outdoor venue used in conjunction with the 4th Street 

Theatre.  The length of street closure is to allow for tent setup on Friday night 

and tent take down on Sunday morning. Sidewalks are to remain open for 

access to the library on Saturday.  

 

  

Recommended 

Action:     

Direct staff to bring to the March 1, 2021, City Council Meeting for final 

approval. 

  

Fund Name:  

  

Account Number:  

  

Available Budget $: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
  x  Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

7

WS #3.



8

WS #3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: February 16, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission 

  

Summary: In February 2021 the terms of Doug Sharp and Carolee Hazlet will expire on 

the Historic Preservation Commission board. Carolee Hazlet and Doug Sharp 

have submitted applications stating they would be willing be reappointed to 

the board.  Advertisement was done, and no applications was received.  

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring to the March 1st Council meeting for approving of two 

individuals to the commission. 

  

Fund Name: N/a 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: $0 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Role Call  Aye  Nay 
 
  Memo   Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x   Correspondence   Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation   Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation   Petition M  S  Brubaker     
  P/C Minutes   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  Application   Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
  Citizen   Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
  Consultant Report   Other         Passed Failed 

 

9

WS #4.



10

WS #4.



11

WS #4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: February 16, 2021 
 

  

Agenda Item: Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit Renewal and Storm 

Water Management Plan Update 

  

Summary:   The City of Moberly is required by the Missouri Department of Natural 

Resources to have an NPDES (discharge) permit for the City’s separate storm 

sewer system.  This permit is issued for a period of five years and must be 

renewed simultaneously with the State of Missouri’s updated general permit 

for small municipalities.   

  

Recommended 

Action: Review the Storm Water Management Plan 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence         Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report     X  Other         Passed Failed 

 

12

WS #5.



City of Moberly 

101 West Reed Street, Moberly, MO  65270 

Phone (660) 263-4420     fax (660) 263-9398 

 

City of        
  

 

 

 
 

 

The City of Moberly is required by the Missouri Department of Natural Resources to have an NPDES (discharge) 

permit for the City’s separate storm sewer system.  This permit is issued for a period of five years and must be 

renewed simultaneously with the State of Missouri’s updated general permit for small municipalities.  Utility staff 

have been working on preparing this update to the stormwater management plan and the permit application, 

which are due to be submitted not later than April 1, 2021. 

 

A copy of the updated storm water management plan (SWMP) is attached to this memo.  The SWMP will be the 

guidelines for how a regulatory audit will be conducted of our program.  The basic questions they will ask are: “Is 

Moberly doing what they said they would do?  If not, have they documented why not, and what measures are put 

in place instead of the measures that are not being accomplished?”  The goal of the SWMP is to be 

understandable from the general public’s point of view to provide protection of the area water ways, private 

property, and public areas.  

 

Major changes to the document from the 2018 version previously approved by the Council and MDNR are as 

follows: 

 

Summary of Major Changes to the City of Moberly Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) 
 

Overall 

 

Added Rachel Hultz as responsible person 

Added an iterative evaluation process to assess the effectiveness of the SWMP each year 

Added Sugar Creek Lake Source Water Pollution Protection Plan as an attachment 

 

Sections 2 and 3 

 

Changed Minimum Control Measure 2 (MCM 2) to only cover public involvement in permit renewal 

Moved all other forms of public involvement to MCM 1 

Added a brief explanation of why each target audience for MCM 1 was chosen, and how the city reaches out to each  

Added non-homeowner residents as target audience  

Added nutrient pollution and construction pollutants as target pollutants 

Removed rain barrel program, installation of outfall signs, and article calendar as outreach mechanisms 

Expanded Master Gardener partnership to partnerships with local environmental organizations (including the Master 

Gardeners) 

To: City Council Members 

Cc: Brian Crane, City Manager 

From: Mary West-Calcagno, Director of Public Utilities 

Re: Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System NPDES Permit Renewal and Storm Water 
Management Plan Update 

Date: February 9, 2021 

Inter-Office Memorandum 

13

WS #5.



City of Moberly 

101 West Reed Street, Moberly, MO  65270 

Phone (660) 263-4420     fax (660) 263-9398 

Added brochure updates, social media posts, trash cleanups, and article publication as outreach mechanisms for MCM 1 

Changed Stormwater Committee meeting schedule to once per permit cycle 

Established forms on city website for submitting stormwater questions or concerns 

 

Section 4 

 

Added storm sewer mapping, household hazardous waste recycling program, targeted presentations, stormwater complaint 

forms, and brochure distribution to illicit discharge prevention Best Management Practices (BMPs) 

Removed educational conference as illicit discharge prevention BMP 

Added explanation of how priority areas are chosen 

 

Section 5 

 

Described criteria for stream inspections 

Described prioritization mechanism for construction inspections 

Added time limit for responses to public complaints 

Added stormwater complaint forms as BMP 

 

Section 6 

 

Described time limit for post construction stormwater permit renewal 

Updated deadline for requiring post construction stormwater permits 

Described inspection criteria 

Described inspection frequency 

Added storm sewer mapping project, demonstration rain garden, stormwater complaint forms, presentations to target audiences, 

and brochure distribution as BMPs 

 

Section 7 

 

Added requirement to create pollution prevention Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) 

Described City employee training 

Described flood management project assessment method 

Listed city-managed National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System permits (NPDES permits) 

Added requirement to get feedback from department heads about BMPs 

Removed sewer rehabilitation BMP 

 

Section 8 

 

Changed reporting frequency from biannually to annually 

 

 

Please do not hesitate to reach out with any questions you may have as you review the document.  A public 

presentation of the changes to the SWMP document with an opportunity for questions and answers from the 

public will be held on March 10, 2021 from 5:30 pm to 6:30 pm in the Municipal Building Large Conference 

Room.  A Public Hearing must be conducted prior to submission to MDNR.  This public hearing is scheduled for 

March 15, 2021 at 5:30 pm in the Municipal Building Large Conference Room also.  Written comments regarding 

the SWMP will be received until March 19, 2021 at 5:00 pm and should be sent to City of Moberly, Stormwater, 

101 W Reed Street, Moberly, MO 65270, or may be sent via email to rhultz@cityofmoberly.com.  

 

The 2018 SWMP as well as the draft 2021 SWMP are available on the City’s Stormwater website at:   
https://www.moberlymo.org/214/Stormwater  
 

14

WS #5.

mailto:rhultz@cityofmoberly.com
https://www.moberlymo.org/214/Stormwater


 

 

1001 Diamond Ridge, Suite 1100 
Jefferson City, MO 65109 
573.638.5000 
www.barr.com 
 
 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) 
Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Prepared for 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

August 2018 

15

WS #5.



 

 
\\barr.com\projects\Jeff City\25 MO\79\25791011 NPDES and Source Water Protect\WorkFiles\Task 1A - SWMP Review\DRAFT SWMP\Moberly MS4 SWMP 
8.29.18.docx 
 i  

 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4)                     
Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP) 

August 2018 

Contents 
1.0 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1 Location .............................................................................................................................................................................. 1 

1.2 Regulatory Background ................................................................................................................................................ 2 

1.3 Plan Objectives ................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2.0 MCM1: Public Education and Outreach ...................................................................................................................... 4 

2.1 Purpose and Scope ........................................................................................................................................................ 4 

2.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences .............................................................................................................................. 5 

2.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) ........................................................................................................................ 6 

2.4 Measureable Goals ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

3.0 MCM2: Public Involvement and Participation .......................................................................................................... 9 

3.1 Purpose and Scope ........................................................................................................................................................ 9 

3.2 Best Management Practices (BMPs) ........................................................................................................................ 9 

3.3 Measureable Goals .......................................................................................................................................................10 

4.0 MCM3: Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination ..............................................................................................11 

4.1 Purpose and Scope ......................................................................................................................................................11 

4.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences ............................................................................................................................11 

4.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) ......................................................................................................................13 

4.4 Measureable Goals .......................................................................................................................................................13 

5.0 MCM4: Construction Stormwater Runoff Control ................................................................................................15 

5.1 Purpose and Scope ......................................................................................................................................................15 

5.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences ............................................................................................................................15 

5.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) ......................................................................................................................16 

5.4 Measureable Goals .......................................................................................................................................................17 

6.0 MCM5: Post-Construction Stormwater Management in New Development and Redevelopment ..19 

6.1 Purpose and Scope ......................................................................................................................................................19 

6.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences ............................................................................................................................19 

6.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) ......................................................................................................................20 

16

WS #5.



 

 

 
 ii  

 

6.4 Measureable Goals .......................................................................................................................................................21 

7.0 MCM6: Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping .............................................................................................23 

7.1 Purpose and Scope ......................................................................................................................................................23 

7.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences ............................................................................................................................23 

7.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) ......................................................................................................................24 

7.4 Measureable Goals .......................................................................................................................................................25 

8.0 Recordkeeping and Reporting .....................................................................................................................................26 

8.1 Recordkeeping ...............................................................................................................................................................26 

8.2 Reporting .........................................................................................................................................................................26 

 

 

  

17

WS #5.



 

 

 
 iii  

 

List of Tables 

Table 1-1 MO-0117960 Outfall Locations and Receiving Waters ........................................................................ 2 
Table 1-2 MO-R040030 Outfall Locations ..................................................................................................................... 2 
Table 2-1 MCM1 Target Pollutants and Audiences ................................................................................................... 5 
Table 2-2  MCM1 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms .......................................................................... 6 
Table 2-3 MCM1 Measurable Goals ................................................................................................................................. 8 
Table 3-1 MCM2 Measurable Goals .............................................................................................................................. 10 
Table 4-1 MCM3 Target Pollutants and Audiences ................................................................................................ 12 
Table 4-2  MCM3 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms ....................................................................... 12 
Table 4-3 MCM3 Measurable Goals .............................................................................................................................. 14 
Table 5-1 MCM4 Target Pollutants and Audiences ................................................................................................ 16 
Table 5-2  MCM4 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms ....................................................................... 16 
Table 5-3 MCM4 Measurable Goals .............................................................................................................................. 18 
Table 6-1 MCM5 Target Pollutants and Audiences ................................................................................................ 19 
Table 6-2  MCM5 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms ....................................................................... 20 
Table 6-3 MCM5 Measurable Goals .............................................................................................................................. 22 
Table 7-1 MCM6 Target Pollutants and Audiences ................................................................................................ 24 
Table 7-2  MCM6 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms ....................................................................... 24 
Table 7-3 MCM6 Measurable Goals .............................................................................................................................. 25 
 

List of Attachments 

Attachment A State of Missouri, Department of Natural Resources Operating Permit, MO-R040030 

Attachment B City of Moberly Stormwater Public Outreach Materials 

Attachment C Chapter 34 of the City of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances 

Attachment D City of Moberly’s Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Plan 

Attachment E MS4 Outfall Report and Map 

Attachment F Missouri DNR MS4 Reporting Form MO 780-1846  
 
 

  

18

WS #5.



 

 

 
 iv  

 

Acronyms 

Acronym Description 
BMP Best Management Practice 
CSO Combined Sewer Overflow 
MDNR Department of Natural Resources 
EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
IDDE Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination 
MCM Minimum Control Measure 
MS4 Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System 
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
SWMP Stormwater Management Plan 
MSOP Missouri State Operating Permit 
WWTP Wastewater Treatment Plant 
MGP Master General Permit  
TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 
 

 

19

WS #5.



 

 

 
 1  

 

1.0 Introduction 
1.1 Location 
The City of Moberly (City), which covers approximately 12 square miles, is located in Randolph County in 
north central Missouri. As of the 2010 census, Moberly had a population of 13,974. While the majority of 
land use in Moberly is commercial and residential, significant manufacturing industries are also present 
within the city limits.  

The City is a Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) community with a Phase II MS4 National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) General Permit (MO-R040030) issued by the Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources (MDNR). The City developed its previous Stormwater Management Plan 
(SWMP) in 2013 as a measure to implement this program and comply with their permit. The SWMP 
describes the City’s approach to implementing best management practices (BMPs) for each of the six 
minimum control measures (MCMs), as outlined in the City’s MS4 Missouri State Operating Permit 
(MSOP), and described in Section 1.2.  

Moberly owns and operates a water treatment plant and distribution system as well as a wastewater 
treatment plant (WWTP) and collection system. Moberly has a separate NPDES permit (No. MO-0117960) 
for the WWTP and combined sewer overflow (CSO) discharges. Treated effluent discharges from the 
WWTP to the Tributary to Coon Creek from Outfall 001 (refer to Table 1-1). Moberly utilizes combined 
sewers, in which stormwater runoff is collected in portions of Moberly’s sewage collection system and is 
treated at the WWTP or directly discharged at CSO. Moberly operates two CSO storage lagoons, 
permitted as CSO discharge points, that provide storage and primary treatment for the combined sewage 
and stormwater during rain events. The permitted CSO outfalls from the lagoons only discharge when the 
system storage capacity is exceeded. Water from four CSOs (#002-005) in Moberly is pumped back to the 
collection system from storage and treated at the WWTP. During high flows, these outfalls may discharge 
to the surface waters listed in Table 1-1. 

Four major streams and their tributaries receive stormwater from Moberly, including Coon Creek, Sweet 
Springs Creek, Sugar Creek, and the Elk Fork of the Salt River. Coon Creek and its tributaries receive 
stormwater from the southeastern part of the City, the Elk Fork of the Salt River and its tributaries receive 
stormwater from the northeastern part of the City, Sugar Creek and its tributaries receive stormwater from 
the northwestern part of the City, and Sweet Springs Creek and its tributaries receive stormwater from the 
southwestern part of the City. Table 1-1 and Table 1-2 include the outfall locations for NPDES permitted 
discharges from Moberly.  

 

20

WS #5.



 

 

 
 2  

 

Table 1-1 MO-0117960 Outfall Locations and Receiving Waters 

Outfall Source of Discharge UTM Receiving Water 

001 Municipal Wastewater  X=553968, Y=4364335 Tributary to Coon Creek 

002 Combined Sewer Overflow X=549992, Y=4363712 Tributary to Coon Creek 

003 Combined Sewer Overflow X=550339, Y=4363535 Tributary to Coon Creek 

004 Combined Sewer Overflow X=546585, Y=4361957 Sweet Spring Creek 

005 Combined Sewer Overflow X=546585, Y=4361957 Sweet Spring Creek 

 

Table 1-2 MO-R040030 Outfall Locations 

Outfall Latitude Longitude Northing Easting 
Outfall #1 39.4438919100 -92.4356272600 1314663.51800 1658595.76200 

Outfall #2 39.4349428027 -92.4187611349 1311407.86000 1663361.75400 

Outfall #3 39.4347522118 -92.4186753925 1311338.46400 1663386.03300 

Outfall #4 39.4275576337 -92.4138551980 1308719.27434 1664749.95433 

Outfall #5 39.4274803181 -92.4138157183 1308691.12463 1664761.13304 

Outfall #6 39.4198616297 -92.4188547619 1305914.88300 1663340.25000 

Outfall #7 39.4193398413 -92.4162672727 1305725.50200 1664071.39400 

Outfall #8 39.4087674705 -92.4303522776 1301871.39800 1660095.31300 

Outfall #9 39.4084300844 -92.4211034938 1301750.66400 1662708.62200 

Outfall #10 39.4047116099 -92.4340243932 1300393.37500 1659058.85300 

Outfall #11 39.4018162559 -92.4265951112 1299340.43700 1661158.94200 

Outfall #12 39.3887017097 -92.4127273553 1294567.29400 1665082.22100 

Outfall #13 39.3940471351 -92.4203849338 1296512.22400 1662916.27000 

Outfall #14 39.3934263806 -92.4254498918 1296284.90800 1661485.07500 

Outfall #15 39.3930886900 -92.4283153100 1296161.25800 1660675.38400 

Outfall #16 39.4027355400 -92.4521996200 1299670.40500 1653923.60900 

Outfall #17 39.4109356000 -92.4443177100 1302658.34500 1656148.95600 

Outfall #18 39.4205053800 -92.4747562900 1306140.04300 1647547.96500 

Outfall #19 39.4349030643 -92.4519731598 1311386.66500 1653981.36400 
The coordinate system used is NAD83 State Plane Missouri Central (in feet). 
 

1.2 Regulatory Background 
As a city with a population between 10,000 and 100,000, Moberly is categorized as a small MS4, or Phase 
II, owner/operator by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). The MDNR General Permit for 
Small MS4s, Permit MO-R040030, (MS4 Permit; Attachment A) authorizes Moberly to discharge 
stormwater. Section 2.1 of the MS4 Permit requires permittees to submit a written SWMP that includes 

21

WS #5.



 

 

 
 3  

 

the six MCMs established by the EPA, evaluation and reporting efforts, and recordkeeping. The six MCMs 
include: 

1. Public Education and Outreach of Stormwater Impacts (Section 4.2.1 of the MS4 Permit); 
2. Public Involvement and Participation (Section 4.2.2 of the MS4 Permit); 
3. Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (Section 4.2.3 of the MS4 Permit); 
4. Construction Site Stormwater Runoff Control (Section 4.2.4 of the MS4 Permit); 
5. Post-Construction Stormwater Management in New Development and Redevelopment 

(Section 4.2.5 of the MS4 Permit); and  
6. Pollution Prevention/Good Housekeeping for Municipal Operations (Section 4.2.6 of the 

MS4 Permit). 

1.3 Plan Objectives 
The objective of this SWMP is to: 

• Provide BMPs for each of the six MCMs; 
• Provide measurable goals to evaluate BMPs; and 
• Ensure the City is in compliance with the proper monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting 

requirements set forth by the MS4 permit. 

22

WS #5.



 

 

 
 4  

 

2.0 MCM1: Public Education and Outreach 
2.1 Purpose and Scope 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 4.2.1. The purpose of 
MCM1 is to establish a public education program to distribute educational material to the community or 
conduct equivalent outreach activities to: 

• Educate the public on the impact of stormwater on water bodies; and  
• Provide steps the public can take to reduce pollutants in stormwater runoff. 

The City’s public education and outreach program includes the target audiences that have been identified 
(including commercial and industrial entities, see Table 2-1 and Table 2-2). The City plans to inform 
individuals and groups on opportunities for SWMP involvement, continue to develop their outreach 
strategy to reach target audiences, and identify any new pollutant source(s) that can addressed by the 
program. Current lists of target pollutants, audiences, and mechanisms for outreach, are listed in 
Section 2.2.  

The City has employed the strategy of developing printable educational materials that are available to the 
public. Currently, the City has a number of stormwater printed brochures that are available and distributed 
as needed (Attachment B). The brochures include the following: 

• Best Management Practices for Excavation-Foundation Work 
• Best Management Practices for General Construction 
• Composting 
• Green Lawn Care 
• Non-Toxic Pesticides 
• Pesticide Safety Tips 
• Rain Barrels 
• Rain Gardens 
• Storm Drain Stenciling 
• Summer Watershed Tip 
• Pick Up After Your Pet 

The City is developing an update to the Source Water Protection Plan for Sugar Creek Lake. This updated 
plan for the City’s drinking water supply will involve a significant amount of stakeholder involvement and 
public participation. The input received from stakeholders will be used to determine priorities for the plan 
and to develop some of the plan content. Education of the public regarding stormwater runoff in the 
Sugar Creek Lake watershed, and developing specific goals to work to improve water quality in the lake, 
are at the center of this process. The updated Source Water Protection Plan for Sugar Creek Lake is 
planned to be complete by June 2019.   

The Director of Public Utilities and Water Quality Coordinator serve as the responsible persons for MCM1.  

23

WS #5.



 

 

 
 5  

 

2.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences 
Table 2-1 provides a list of target pollutants and their associated target audiences for MCM1. Table 2-2 
provides the target mechanisms for each audience.  

Table 2-1 MCM1 Target Pollutants and Audiences 

 

Target Pollutant Potential Sources/ Target Audience(s) 

Residential Pollutants: 
• Household hazardous waste 
• Litter/solid waste 
• Pesticides and herbicides 
• Pet wastes 
• Used oil 

• Home owners 
• Students; grades K-12 
• Local college students 
• City Council 

Commercial Pollutants: 
• Used oil 
• Sediment 
• Litter/solid waste 
 

• Business owners 
• Management of large paved areas 
• Management of waste disposal 

Industrial Pollutants: 
• Used oil 
• Sediment 
• Process/product chemicals 
• Hazardous materials 
• Litter/solid waste 

• Business owners 
• Industrial site managers 
• Developers 
• Engineers 
• Management of large paved areas 
• Management of waste disposal 

  

24

WS #5.



 

 

 
 6  

 

Table 2-2  MCM1 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms 

Target Audience Target Outreach Mechanism 

• Home owners 
• Students; grades K-12 
• Local college students 
• City Council  

• Newspaper articles 
• Master Gardener’s Annual Plant Sale 
• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Commercial business owners 

• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Newspaper articles 
• Master Gardener’s Annual Plant Sale 
• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Industrial business owners 
• Industrial site managers 

• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Printed brochures 
• City Stormwater Manuals 

• Developers 
• Engineers 

• Project meetings 
• Printed brochures 
• City Stormwater Manuals  

 
 
 
 

2.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
The MS4 Permit requires permittees to develop or design BMPs to address each MCM and include in the 
SWMP (Section 4.1.1 of the MS4 Permit). Moberly has many ongoing public education BMPs to address 
MCM1, including: 

• Informational articles are developed and published in the local newspaper on stormwater topics 
to provide information to the public. The City tracks articles and article responses through the 
City’s website or phone calls.  

• The City and Magic City Master Gardeners sponsor the Master Gardeners’ Annual Plant Sale in 
May of each year. Educational information on topic such as composting, rain gardens, and rain 
barrels, is shared at this event. This event is open to the public. Typical attendance is 200 or more 
participants. 

• The City has a Household Hazardous Waste program in place. Methods of outreach and 
education for this program include the City’s website and local radio.  

• The City provides stormwater education regarding composting, rain gardens, rain barrels, and the 
Household Hazardous Waste program using brochures, newspaper articles and in-person 
communication.  

25

WS #5.



 

 

 
 7  

 

• The City has developed printable educational materials that are available to the public. Currently, 
the City has the following stormwater printed brochures (Attachment B) that are available and 
distributed as needed. The brochures include the following topics: 

o Best Management Practices for Excavation-Foundation Work 
o Best Management Practices for General Construction 
o Composting 
o Green Lawn Care 
o Non-Toxic Pesticides 
o Pesticide Safety Tips 
o Rain Barrels 
o Rain Gardens 
o Storm Drain Stenciling 
o Summer Watershed Tip 
o Pick up After Your Pet 

The following BMPs will be designed, developed or further developed, between 2019 and 2023 regarding 
MCM1: 

• The City will have an article calendar to plan for educational stormwater topics for newspaper 
articles throughout the year. This BMP will provide timely information to the public and increase 
public understanding of how various activities impact water quantity and quality.  

• All newly identified or revised MS4 outfall location will be marked in the field with visible signs, at 
a rate of 20% per year. This BMP can help to bring awareness to the public of stormwater outfalls 
and locations where the City’s stormwater collection system discharges to other waters.   

• The City will continue to grow public participation in the stormwater drain stenciling program. 
Through participation in this program, the public will be educated about stormwater flows, 
including increased awareness of where and how stormwater is conveyed.  

2.4 Measureable Goals 
Moberly has established measureable goals for each BMP, as required by Section 4.1.1 of the MS4 Permit. 
The intent of a measureable goal is to provide quantifiable milestones to document progress toward the 
MCMs through the established BMPs. Table 2-3 provides Moberly’s measurable goals for the BMPs 
designated for MCM1.  

26

WS #5.



 

 

 
 8  

 

Table 2-3 MCM1 Measurable Goals 

BMP Measurable Goal Completion 
Milestone Date 

Measurement 
Frequency 

Printed Brochures Track number of brochures 
distributed  Ongoing Annually 

Outfall signs posted/updated Complete all; goal of 20% per 
year October 2023 Annually 

Breakfast Education Meetings 
to Business/Industry 

Track number hosted; goal of 
one per year or five total  October 2023 Annually 

In-person presentations to 
service organizations 

Track number completed; goal of 
two per year or 10 total October 2023 Annually 

Rain barrels distributed Track number distributed Ongoing Annually 

Storm drain stenciling  Track number completed Ongoing Annually 

 
 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

27

WS #5.



 

 

 
 9  

 

3.0 MCM2: Public Involvement and Participation 
3.1 Purpose and Scope 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 4.2.2. The purpose of 
MCM2 is to establish a public involvement/participation program to provide opportunities for public 
involvement in: 

• The development and oversite of the permittee’s SWMP; and  
• The permittee’s renewal application. 

The City’s public involvement/participation program includes, at a minimum: 

• A public notice period to allow the public to review the SWMP and renewal application prior to 
submission of the SWMP and renewal application to the MDNR. The required public review 
period by the MS4 Permit is at least ten business days; 

• A notice of public meeting, if needed, regarding the SWMP and renewal application. The required 
notice by the MS4 Permit is at least 72 hours prior to the meeting; 

• A plan to target all potentially affected stakeholder groups, including but not limited to, 
commercial and industrial businesses, trade associations, environmental groups, homeowner 
associations, and educational organizations; 

• Opportunities for citizen representatives on stormwater panels or committees, if applicable; 

• Volunteer monitoring or stream/lake clean-up activities; and 

• Opportunities for citizen volunteers to assist with education on the City’s SWMP. 

The Director of Public Utilities and Water Quality Coordinator will serve as the responsible persons for 
MCM2.  

3.2 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
Moberly has many ongoing public involvement BMPs to address MCM2, including programs regarding: 

• Public meetings regarding the SWMP development and renewal of the permit; 
• Source water protection planning for Sugar Creek Lake; 
• Household Hazardous Waste; 
• Rechargeable battery and cell phone recycling; 
• Yard waste collection; 
• Rain barrels; 
• Composting; 
• Storm drain stenciling; and 
• Drug Take Back (Partnership with the Drug Enforcement Administration). 

28

WS #5.



 

 

 
 10  

 

The City held a public meeting on August 23, 2018 to allow the public to provide input to the content of 
the updated SWMP, prior to finalizing this plan. The meeting was announced more than 10 days ahead of 
time via newspaper, radio and social media. Invitee groups to the public meeting included: 

• City Council 
• Moberly Area Economic Development 
• Chamber of Commerce 
• Main Street Moberly 
• Moberly Area Public Schools 
• Industries 
• Commercial Businesses 
• Developers 
• Engineering Companies 
• General Public 

 
The following BMPs will be designed or developed between 2019 and 2023 regarding MCM2: 

• Develop a stormwater committee of stakeholders (members of the public and City staff) that 
meets on a regular basis. This group could be used to educate, inform, and support actions to 
improve stormwater management and greater public outreach. The goal of this BMP is to 
encourage greater engagement and support for stormwater related issues and activities in the 
City.  

3.3 Measureable Goals 
Table 3-1 provides Moberly’s measurable goals for the BMPs designated for MCM2.  

Table 3-1 MCM2 Measurable Goals 

BMP Measurable Goal Completion 
Milestone Date 

Measurement 
Frequency 

Hold public meeting for SWMP 
updates and permit renewal 

Track meetings hosted; 
goal of once per permit 
renewal and once per 
update of the SWMP 

October 2023 Once per permit 
cycle 

Develop a stormwater committee of 
stakeholders 

Track meetings held; goal 
of one meeting per year 
once established 

October 2023 Annually 

Storm drain stenciling  Track number completed Ongoing Annually 

Breakfast Education Meetings to 
Business/Industry 

Track number hosted; goal 
of one per year or five total  October 2023 Annually 

Source water protection planning Track meetings held Ongoing Annually 

 
    

29

WS #5.



 

 

 
 11  

 

4.0 MCM3: Illicit Discharge Detection and 
Elimination 

4.1 Purpose and Scope 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 4.2.3. The purpose of 
MCM3 is to establish procedures to prevent illicit discharges from city outfalls to receiving water bodies 
and provide enforcement in accordance with Chapter 34, Article II of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances 
(Attachment C), and an Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination (IDDE) plan (Attachment D). The IDDE 
MCM includes plans and procedures for: 

• Detecting and addressing non-stormwater discharges of the City’s stormwater system; 

• Screening dry weather flows using field tests designed for determining discharge sources; 

• Locating priority inspection areas; 

• Tracing sources and eliminating illicit discharges; 

• Implementing enforcement; 

• Addressing non-stormwater discharges or flows that are a significant contributor of pollutants to 
the MS4; and 

• Informing public employees, businesses, and the general public of the hazards associated with 
illegal discharges, and describing how the IDDE will coordinate with other MCMs. 

The Director of Public Utilities and Water Quality Coordinator will serve as the responsible persons for 
MCM3.  

4.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences 
Table 4-1 provides a list of target pollutants and their associated target audiences for MCM3. Table 4-2 
provides the target mechanisms for each audience.  

30

WS #5.



 

 

 
 12  

 

Table 4-1 MCM3 Target Pollutants and Audiences 

Significant Contributors Target Pollutants  Target Audience(s) 

On-site sewer systems E.coli 
• Home owners 
• Commercial businesses 
• Industries 

Animal waste E. coli • General public 

Shipping container 
activity/transport 

Incidental or accidental releases 
of chemicals/products 

• Commercial businesses 
• Industries 

Litter Debris, sediment 

• Home owners 
• Commercial businesses 
• Industries 
• Developers 
• General public 

Residential chemical use Pesticides/herbicides • Home owners 

Agricultural activities Fertilizers, pesticides, E. coli • Agricultural business owners 

Vehicle service stations Oil & grease, benzene, toluene, 
ethylene, and xylene 

• Commercial businesses 
• Industries 

   

Table 4-2  MCM3 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms 

Target Audience Target Outreach Mechanism 

• Home owners 
• Students; grades K-12 
• Local college students 
• City Council  
• General public 

• Newspaper articles 
• Master Gardener’s Annual Plant Sale 
• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Commercial business owners 

• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Newspaper articles 
• Master Gardener’s Annual Plant Sale 
• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Industrial business owners 
• Industrial site managers 

• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Printed brochures 
• City Stormwater Manuals 

• Developers 
• Engineers 

• Project meetings 
• Printed brochures 
• City Stormwater Manuals  

  

 

31

WS #5.



 

 

 
 13  

 

4.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
Chapter 34, Article II of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances (Attachment C) and Illicit Discharge Detection and 
Elimination Plan (Attachment D) provide procedures and plans for IDDE. In addition, Moberly has many 
ongoing BMPs to address MCM3, including the following: 

• A map of the storm sewer system (MS4) outfalls (Attachment E).  

• The City has established procedures for identifying and tracing an illicit discharge in the IDDE 
plan.  

• The City has established an inspection and enforcing plan for illicit discharges in the IDDE plan.  

• The City has an Emergency Response Plan for accidental spills and/or illicit dumping, see 
Appendix C of the IDDEP.  

• The City provides department heads and supervisors a copy of the SWMP. 

• The City’s Household Hazardous Waste program provides a free service to residents to dispose of 
household hazardous waste, and thus discourages illicit dumping of these products. 

Opportunities for public involvement in this program include those listed in Table 6-1 of the attached 
IDDE plan. 

The following BMPs will be designed, developed or further developed between 2019 and 2023 regarding 
MCM3: 

• The City is working to further develop IDDE training materials for city employees, and implement 
an updated IDDE plan (Attachment D). This will improve awareness of IDDE and ensure follow up 
takes place once a potential illicit discharge is identified.  

• The City plans to hold an education conference with Moberly Area Economic Development  and 
the Chamber of Commerce, which would include invitations to business owners, industry, 
developers and the general public. The goal of this meeting is to increase public awareness and 
engagement around best practices and stormwater issues.  

4.4 Measureable Goals 
Table 4-3 provides Moberly’s measurable goals for the BMPs designated for MCM3.  

32

WS #5.



 

 

 
 14  

 

Table 4-3 MCM3 Measurable Goals 

BMP Measurable Goal Completion 
Milestone Date 

Measurement 
Frequency 

Outfall signs posted/updated Complete all; goal of 20% per 
year October 2023 Annually 

MS4 outfalls inspected Complete all; 25% per year, 
beginning in 2020 October 2023 Annually 

Priority areas inspected 
Complete all; highest priority in 
2019, and at least one per year in 
2020-2023 

October 2023 Annually 

Industry contacts made Track the number and type of 
contacts Ongoing Annually 

Concerns investigated Track the number and 
description Ongoing Annually 

Contacts with on-site sewer 
owners 

Track contacts and number of 
system corrections addressed Ongoing Annually 

 
    

 

  

33

WS #5.



 

 

 
 15  

 

5.0 MCM4: Construction Stormwater Runoff Control 
5.1 Purpose and Scope 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 4.2.4. The purpose of 
MCM4 is to develop, implement, and enforce a stormwater runoff program for construction activities that 
result in land disturbance greater than or equal to one acre in size or part of a common plan of 
development or sale that would disturb land greater than or equal to one acre. Moberly has developed 
and implemented the Land Disturbance Manual in accordance with Chapter 34, Article III of Moberly’s 
Code of Ordinances. The Land Disturbance Manual and City Ordinance include the following requirements 
of the MS4 Permit for this SWMP: 

• Sanctions designed to ensure compliance to the extent possible under state and local law; 

• Requirements for the construction site operators to control construction-site waste that may 
cause adverse impacts to water quality; 

• Procedures for the permittee to receive and consider information submitted by the public, 
including coordination with the permittee’s public education and involvement programs; and 

• Procedures for the permittee to inspect sites and enforce control measures, including 
prioritization of site inspection. 

The Director of Public Utilities and Water Quality Coordinator will serve as the responsible persons for 
MCM4.  

5.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences 
Table 5-1 provides a list of target pollutants and their associated target audiences for MCM4. Table 5-2 
provides the target mechanisms for each audience.  

 

34

WS #5.



 

 

 
 16  

 

Table 5-1 MCM4 Target Pollutants and Audiences 

Target Pollutant Potential Sources Target Audience(s) 

• Sediment, including vehicle 
track-out 

• Litter 
• Construction 

materials/chemicals 
• Concrete truck washout 
• Vehicle and equipment fluids 

 

Construction sites 
• Sediment stockpiles 
• Construction materials 
• Waste materials 
• Vehicle 

maintenance/fueling 
 

• Developers 
• Engineers 
• Contractors 
• Land owners 
• Industries 
• Commercial business 

owners 
• Home owners 
• Do-it-yourself operations 

 
 

  

Table 5-2  MCM4 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms 

Target Audience Target Outreach Mechanism 

• Home owners 
• Do-it-yourself operations 

• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Commercial business owners 
• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Industrial business owners 
• Industrial site managers 

• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Printed brochures 
• City Land Disturbance Manual 

• Developers 
• Project owners 
• Engineers 

• In-person project meetings 
• Printed brochures 
• City Land Disturbance Manual 

  

5.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
Chapter 34, Article III of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances and Land Disturbance Manual provide procedures 
and plans for target audiences to comply with construction stormwater runoff. In addition, Moberly has 
many ongoing BMPs to address MCM4, including the following: 

• Active construction sites are inspected routinely for track out, appropriate BMP installation, waste 
management, stormwater inlet protection, and general management of the site, per the City’s 
Land Disturbance Manual. The City’s goal is to conduct inspections of active sites on a weekly 
basis, and typically after rain events greater than 0.5 inches. Inspection forms are included in the 
City’s Land Disturbance Manual. 

• Streams near construction sites are monitored for sediment, color, oil, litter, or other issues by 
City staff, routinely. These are usually done during construction site inspections.  

35

WS #5.



 

 

 
 17  

 

• The City provides construction stormwater BMP brochures to homeowners, developers and 
project owners, and tracks the number and type of brochures distributed. Brochures are available 
at City Hall and the Household Hazardous Waste Collection/Redistribution facility.  

• The City tracks and responds to information and/or concerns submitted by the public regarding 
construction site activity. Information regarding these reports and responses are recorded in a city 
log book. 

Moberly completed the following BMP between 2014 and 2018 regarding MCM5: 

• The City’s Land Disturbance Manual was revised and updated in 2018. As a result, the 
requirements of the program have been streamlined and revised.  
 

The following BMPs will be designed or developed between 2019 and 2023 regarding MCM4: 

• The Land Disturbance Manual was revised and updated in 2018. The City will continue to inform 
stakeholders, provide access to copies of the manual, and follow the procedures in the updated 
manual to implement the program.  

• The City will continue to require that every building permit issued by the City be routed to the 
Stormwater Department for review and signature, prior to issuance. This will ensure that all 
projects required to obtain a land disturbance permit are identified, and enter the permitting 
process, as provided in the Land Disturbance Manual.  

• All sites that have been issued building permits will be monitored by City stormwater staff 
approximately every two months. This BMP will help to ensure that unexpected activity at building 
permit sites that need a land disturbance permit are identified.  

• The City’s stormwater staff will work with planning and zoning staff to coordinate on building and 
construction requirements, and work to develop a Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) 
handout/brochure that could be provided to the public. This coordination and FAQ document will 
help the City to better assist and inform the public of the needs and requirements of the land 
disturbance program.  

5.4 Measureable Goals 
Table 5-3 provides the Moberly’s measurable goals for the BMPs designated for MCM4.  

36

WS #5.



 

 

 
 18  

 

Table 5-3 MCM4 Measurable Goals 

BMP Measurable Goal Completion 
Milestone Date 

Measurement 
Frequency 

Issue permits for land 
disturbance sites 

Track permit issuance; goal is 
to issue permits for all active 
construction sites that require 
a permit 

Ongoing As needed 

Active construction site 
inspections 

Track inspections completed; 
goal is once per week per 
permitted site 

Ongoing Weekly 

Monitoring streams near 
active construction sites 

Track monitoring activities 
completed; goal is once after 
each rain event equal or 
greater than 0.5 inches 

Ongoing As needed 

Printed brochures Track number of brochures 
distributed Ongoing Annually 

Provide the Land Disturbance 
Manual to 
owner/developers/engineers 

Provide this information up 
front on all projects; track the 
number of projects 

Ongoing Annually 

Investigate reported concerns 
and report results Track all concerns and reports Ongoing Annually 

Route all building permits 
through the Stormwater 
Department for signature 

Sign off on all building permits Ongoing As needed 

Inspect all building permit 
sites 

Track inspections; goal is 
completion of each site once 
every two months 

Ongoing Annually 

Develop a FAQ document 
with planning and zoning 
staff 

Completion of the new 
document October 2023 Once during the 

permit cycle 

    

 

 

 

 

37

WS #5.



 

 

 
 19  

 

6.0 MCM5: Post-Construction Stormwater 
Management in New Development and 

Redevelopment 
6.1 Purpose and Scope 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 4.2.5. The purpose of 
MCM5 is to develop, implement, and enforce a post-construction stormwater program for construction 
activities that result in land disturbance greater than or equal to one acre in size or part of a common plan 
of development or sale that would disturb land greater than or equal to one acre. Moberly has established 
the Post-Construction Stormwater Manual in accordance with Chapter 34, Article IV of Moberly’s Code of 
Ordinances. The Post-Construction Stormwater Manual and Ordinance meet the following requirements of 
the MS4 Permit for this SWMP: 

• Strategies to minimize water quality impacts, which include a combination of appropriate 
structural and non-structural BMPs; and 

• An inspection plan with implementation schedules for post-construction BMPs. 

The Director of Public Utilities and Water Quality Coordinator will serve as the responsible persons for 
MCM5.  

6.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences 
Table 6-1 provides a list of target pollutants and their associated target audiences for MCM5. Table 6-2 
provides the target mechanisms for each audience.  

Table 6-1 MCM5 Target Pollutants and Audiences 

Target Pollutant Potential Sources Target Audience(s) 

• Sediment 
• Runoff volumes 
• Litter 
• Waste materials 
• Commercial/industrial  

products 
 

Post-construction stormwater 
BMPs, including permanent 
structural controls  
 

• Developers 
• Engineers 
• Contractors 
• Land owners 
• Industries 
• Commercial business 

owners 
• Home owners 
• Home Owners Associations 

 
 

  

 

 

38

WS #5.



 

 

 
 20  

 

Table 6-2  MCM5 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms 

Target Audience Target Outreach Mechanism 

• Home owners 
• Home Owners Associations 

• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Commercial business owners 
• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Household Hazardous Waste Program 
• Printed brochures 

• Industrial business owners 
• Industrial site managers 

• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Printed brochures 
• City Post-Construction Manual 

• Developers 
• Project owners 
• Engineers 
• Realtors 
• Chamber of Commerce 
• Moberly Area Economic Development 

• In-person project meetings 
• Breakfast Education Meeting 
• Printed brochures 
• City Post-Construction Manual 

  

6.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
Chapter 34, Article IV of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances and Post-Construction Stormwater Manual provide 
procedures and plans for target audiences to comply with post-construction stormwater runoff. In 
addition, Moberly has many ongoing BMPs to address MCM5, including the following: 

• The City reviews and issues operating permits for post-construction BMPs, per the Post-
Construction Stormwater Manual. Operating permits are issued for up to one year, and City 
inspections are initiated upon renewal of the permit.  

• The City conducts a pre-construction site assessment for post-construction BMPs and requires 
protection of sensitive areas.  

• The City conducts inspections of permitted post-construction BMPs on an annual frequency, at a 
minimum. Owners are given time allotments to correct deficiencies, per the Post-Construction 
Stormwater Manual and City Ordinance.  

• Streams near post-construction BMPs are monitored on a routine basis by City staff for 
downstream impacts, such as erosion, sediment, color, oil, or litter. 

• Post-Construction BMP sites are inspected to insure sensitive areas are not impacted. Inspection 
forms are included in the City’s Post-Construction Stormwater Manual. 

• The City tracks and responds to information and/or concerns submitted by the public regarding 
water quantity/quality issues. Information regarding these reports and responses are recorded in 
a city log book. 

• A demonstration project including a rain garden and various other BMPs are present at City Hall.  

39

WS #5.



 

 

 
 21  

 

Moberly completed the following BMPs between 2014 and 2018 regarding MCM5: 

• Relaxed requirements were added to the Post-Construction Stormwater Manual in 2018 to allow 
for grassy swales and native grasses to be left un-manicured.  

• A pre-construction site assessment for post-construction BMPs and sensitive areas was more 
clearly outlined in the Post-Construction Stormwater Manual in 2018. 

• The City’s Post-Construction Stormwater Manual was revised and updated in 2018. As a result, the 
requirements of the program have been streamlined and revised.  

The following BMP will be designed or developed between 2019 and 2023 regarding MCM5: 

• The Post-Construction Stormwater Manual was revised and updated in 2018. The City will continue 
to inform stakeholders, provide access to copies of the manual, and follow the procedures in the 
updated manual to implement the program. 

• Encourage development of regional BMPs as an alternative to sit-specific post-construction BMPs, 
per the Post-Construction Stormwater Manual. This option will allow business owners and 
developers to coordinate construction of appropriately designed BMPs, especially where available 
footprint is an issue.  

• Inspect post-construction BMP sites with operating permits at least two to three months prior to 
the expiration of the permit, and describe any deficiencies in a letter to the owner along with a 
reminder to apply for permit renewal.  

• Inspect and issue permits for all existing post-construction BMPs that do not already have an 
operating permit.  

• Conduct outreach and education on post-construction BMPs for developers, realtors, chamber of 
commerce, economic development, engineering firms, and City staff.  

6.4 Measureable Goals 
Table 6-3 provides the Moberly’s measurable goals for the BMPs designated for MCM5.  

40

WS #5.



 

 

 
 22  

 

Table 6-3 MCM5 Measurable Goals 

BMP Measurable Goal Completion 
Milestone Date 

Measurement 
Frequency 

Post-construction BMP 
inspections 

Track inspections completed; 
goals are once per year per 
permitted site/permit renewal, 
and 2-3 months prior to 
renewal 

Ongoing Annually 

Issue operating permits for 
post-construction BMPs 

Track permit issuance; goal is 
to have operating permits for 
all post-construction BMPs 
within five years 

October 2023 Annually 

Monitoring streams near 
post-construction BMPs 

Track monitoring activities 
completed; follow up with land 
owners when issue discovered 

Ongoing As needed 

Printed brochures Track number of brochures 
distributed Ongoing Annually 

Provide the Post-Construction 
Stormwater Manual to 
owner/developers/engineers 

Provide this information up 
front on all projects; track the 
number of projects 

Ongoing Annually 

Investigate reported concerns 
and report results Track all concerns and reports Ongoing Annually 

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

41

WS #5.



 

 

 
 23  

 

7.0 MCM6: Pollution Prevention/Good 
Housekeeping 

7.1 Purpose and Scope 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 4.2.6. The purpose of 
MCM6 is to develop and implement an operation and maintenance program that includes a training 
component and has the ultimate goal of preventing or reducing pollutant runoff from municipal 
operations. The program includes the following requirements of the MS4 Permit for this SWMP: 

• A government employee training program to prevent and reduce stormwater pollution;  

• A list of all municipal operations impacted by the operations and maintenance program, including 
a list of industrial facilities subject to NPDES permits that are owned or operated by the City; 

• Maintenance BMPs, schedules, and long-term inspection procedures; 

• Controls for reducing or eliminating the discharge of pollutants from City owned/operated 
outdoor areas; 

• Procedures for the proper disposal of waste removed from City’s areas of jurisdiction, including 
dredged material, accumulated sediments, floatables, and other debris; 

• Procedures to assess the impacts of water quality for new flood management projects, if 
applicable; and 

• Spill prevention, control, and management practices for all paints, solvents, petroleum products, 
and petroleum waste products (except fuels) under control of the permittee. 

The Director of Public Utilities and Water Quality Coordinator will serve as the responsible persons for 
MCM6.  

7.2 Target Pollutants and Audiences 
Table 7-1 provides a list of target pollutants and their associated target audiences for MCM6. Table 7-2 
provides the target mechanisms for each audience.  

 

42

WS #5.



 

 

 
 24  

 

Table 7-1 MCM6 Target Pollutants and Audiences 

Target Pollutant Potential Sources Target Audience(s) 

• Sanitary or combined sewer 
overflows 

• Sediment 
• Litter 
• Household hazardous waste 
• Automotive/equipment fluids 
• Street salts and sand 
• Chlorine 
 

• Routine City operation and 
maintenance activities 

• City construction projects 
• Treatment of roadways and 

walkways for ice 
• City Parks 
• Wastewater Treatment Facility 
• Waste management  
 

• City employees 
• City council members 
• City officials 
• Contractors 
• Consultants 

 

   
Table 7-2  MCM6 Target Audiences and Outreach Mechanisms 

Target Audience Target Outreach Mechanism 

• City employees 
• City council members 
• City officials 

• In-person meetings 
• City-developed trainings 
• City Stormwater Manuals  
• Printed brochures 

• Contractors 
• Consultants 

• Project meetings 
• Printed brochures 
• City Stormwater Manuals  

  

7.3 Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
Moberly has many ongoing public education BMPs to address MCM6, including: 

• Site inspections are conducted at the department headquarters annually. 

• City staff receive training annually via training videos. 

• The City organizes “Pride in Moberly” city-wide clean up days annually. 

• Open channel storm water drainage conveyances have been refurbished using rock, matting, 
seeding, and mulch to reduce erosion and settlement. The City has a goal of refurbishing 
additional conveyances. 

• Street sweeping activities are conducted weekly.  

• Storm drain inspections, cleaning, and repair are conducted as needed.  

• Sewer rehabilitation is being performed to reduce inflow and infiltration. 

• Sewer jetting and root saw programs are in place to reduce backups and overflows. 

43

WS #5.



 

 

 
 25  

 

The following BMPs will be designed or developed between 2019 and 2023 regarding MCM6: 

• The City will provide copies of the updated SWMP to all City Departments.  

• The City will conduct a meeting with staff from all departments to inform them about the content 
and requirements of the SWMP. This will help to increase awareness of City staff to any changes 
to the SWMP regarding City operations. 

• The City will seek additional externally provided training for City staff to attend on the topic of 
stormwater management for municipal operations.  

7.4 Measureable Goals 
Table 7-3 provides Moberly’s measurable goals for the BMPs designated for MCM6.  

Table 7-3 MCM6 Measurable Goals 

BMP Measurable Goal Completion 
Milestone Date 

Measurement 
Frequency 

Site inspections at each 
department headquarters 

Track location and reports of 
inspection; goal is to complete 
each site annually 

Ongoing Annually 

City staff training 
Record names of staff who 
complete the training; goal is to 
conduct training annually 

Ongoing Annually 

Host City-wide clean up days Track completion of these events; 
goal is once per year Ongoing Annually 

Refurbish open-channel 
stormwater drainage ditches 

Track refurbishments completed; 
goal is to complete three during 
the permit cycle 

October 2023 Annually 

Street sweeping 
Track hours operated, gallons of 
water used, and tons of material 
collected/disposed; goal is weekly 

Ongoing Weekly 

Sewer rehabilitation, jetting, and 
root saw work Track work completed and location Ongoing As needed 

Provide copies of updated SWMP 
to City staff, and conduct meeting 
with City staff to review the 
contents of the plan 

Record meeting attendees names; 
goal is once per permit cycle October 2019 Once per permit 

cycle 

Seek external training to 
supplement City training 

Record attendees names and 
training topic(s) October 2020 Once per permit 

cycle 

    

44

WS #5.



 

 

 
 26  

 

8.0 Recordkeeping and Reporting 
8.1 Recordkeeping 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 5.2. The City will retain 
the most recent version of this SWMP to be made available upon request. In addition, Moberly will 
maintain the following records for a minimum of three years from the date of application for coverage 
under the MS4 Permit: 

• Activities requiring recordkeeping by this SWMP; 
• A copy of the NPDES permit, ordinances, policies, and formal procedures for all six MCMs; and 
• Records of the data used to complete the application for the MS4 Permit. 

8.2 Reporting 
This section of the SWMP was developed in accordance with MS4 Permit Section 5.3. The City will submit 
a SWMP report to MDNR biennially by February 28th of odd numbered years. Reports will be submitted 
through the MDNR’s Form MO 780-1846 (Attachment F), unless an alternative reporting format is 
approved. If the MS4 becomes subject to a Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL), this SWMP will be updated 
accordingly and the City will become subject to annual reporting. Reports will contain the following 
required information from January 1 to December 31 of the immediate following year: 

• Information regarding progress toward achieving the statutory goal of reducing the discharge of 
pollutants to the maximum extent practicable (MEP); 

• The status of the MS4’s compliance with permit conditions; 

• Assessment(s) of the appropriateness of identified BMPs and corresponding measureable goals 
for each MCM; 

• A summary of results of information collected and analyzed during the reporting period, including 
monitoring data or quantifiable values per the MS4’s measurable goals; 

• A summary of the stormwater activities the permittee plans to undertake during the next 
reporting cycle (including an implementation schedule); 

• Any proposed changes to the permittee’s SWMP, including changes to any identified BMPs or 
measureable goals that apply to the SWMP; and 

• If applicable, notice that the permittee is relying on another government entity to satisfy some of 
the permittee’s permit obligations. The permittee will supply the name of the entity, the name of 
the entity’s primary contact person, and other relevant contact information. 

 

45

WS #5.



 

 

 

Attachment A 

State of Missouri, Department of Natural Resources Operating Permit, 
MO-R040030 

 
 

  

46

WS #5.



47

WS #5.



48

WS #5.



49

WS #5.



50

WS #5.



51

WS #5.



52

WS #5.



53

WS #5.



54

WS #5.



55

WS #5.



56

WS #5.



57

WS #5.



58

WS #5.



59

WS #5.



60

WS #5.



61

WS #5.



62

WS #5.



63

WS #5.



64

WS #5.



65

WS #5.



66

WS #5.



67

WS #5.



68

WS #5.



69

WS #5.



70

WS #5.



71

WS #5.



72

WS #5.



73

WS #5.



74

WS #5.



75

WS #5.



76

WS #5.



77

WS #5.



78

WS #5.



79

WS #5.



80

WS #5.



81

WS #5.



82

WS #5.



83

WS #5.



84

WS #5.



85

WS #5.



86

WS #5.



87

WS #5.



88

WS #5.



89

WS #5.



90

WS #5.



91

WS #5.



92

WS #5.



 

 

Attachment B 

City of Moberly Stormwater Public Outreach Materials 

 
 

 

  

93

WS #5.



94

WS #5.



95

WS #5.



96

WS #5.



97

WS #5.



98

WS #5.



99

WS #5.



100

WS #5.



101

WS #5.



102

WS #5.



103

WS #5.



104

WS #5.



105

WS #5.



106

WS #5.



107

WS #5.



108

WS #5.



109

WS #5.



110

WS #5.



111

WS #5.



112

WS #5.



113

WS #5.



114

WS #5.



115

WS #5.



 

 

Attachment C 

Chapter 34 of the City of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances 

 
 

 

  

116

WS #5.



Chapter 34 - STORMWATER MANAGEMENT AND CONTROL 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL  

Sec. 34-1. - Purpose and policy.  

(a)  This chapter sets forth uniform requirements related to stormwater activity for the city and enables 
the city to comply with applicable state and federal laws. The objectives of this chapter are:  

(1)  To prevent erosion and sediment from land disturbance activities from creating a nuisance and 
entering neighboring properties and waters of the state;  

(2)  To prevent the introduction of pollutants into the publically owned treatment works (POTW) that 
will interfere with the operation of the POTW or which will pass through the POTW into receiving 
waters;  

(3)  To encourage the use of best management practices (BMPs) during construction and post 
construction activities;  

(4)  To improve the water quality in receiving streams;  

(5)  To provide for fees and penalties for land disturbance and stormwater permits; and  

(6)  To enable the city to comply with its municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) permit.  

(b)  This chapter shall apply to all development, construction, and excavation activity within the city. This 
chapter authorizes the issuance of land disturbance permits, authorizes monitoring, compliance and 
enforcement activities; establishes administrative review procedures, requires land disturbance 
inspection and reporting; and provides for the setting of fees for the equitable distribution of costs 
resulting from the program established herein.  

(Code 1987, § 28-185; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-2. - Administration.  

Except as otherwise provided herein, the director of public utilities shall administer, implement, and 
enforce the provisions of this chapter. Any powers granted to or duties imposed upon the director may be 
delegated by the director to other city personnel.  

(Code 1987, § 28-186; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-3. - Abbreviations and acronyms.  

The following abbreviations and acronyms shall have the designated meanings:  

(1)  BMP: Best management practice.  

(2)  EPA: Federal Environmental Protection Agency.  

(3)  MDNR: State department of natural resources.  

(4)  MS4: Municipal separate storm sewer system.  

(5)  NPDES: National pollutant discharge elimination system.  

(4)  POTW: Publicly owned treatment works.  

(5)  SWPPP: Stormwater pollution prevention plan.  

(Code 1987, § 28-187; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

117

WS #5.



Secs. 34-4—34-29. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE II. - ILLICIT DISCHARGES  

Sec. 34-30. - Purpose and objectives.  

The purpose of this article is to provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of 
the city through the regulation of non-stormwater discharges to the storm drainage system to the 
maximum extent practicable as required by federal and state law. This article establishes methods for 
controlling the introduction of pollutants into the MS4 to comply with requirements of the NPDES permit 
process. The objectives of this article are:  

(1)  To regulate the contribution of pollutants to the municipal separate storm sewer system (MS4) 
by stormwater discharges by any user.  

(2)  To prohibit illicit connections and discharges to the municipal separate storm sewer system.  

(3)  To establish legal authority to carry out all inspection, surveillance and monitoring procedures 
necessary to ensure compliance with this article.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-172, 28-188; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(I), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-31. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Authorized enforcement agency means employees or designees of the city designated to enforce 
this article.  

Best management practices (BMPs) means schedules of activities, prohibitions of practices, general 
good housekeeping practices, pollution prevention and educational practices, maintenance procedures, 
and other management practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to 
stormwater, receiving waters, or stormwater conveyance systems. BMPs also include treatment practices, 
operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or water disposal, or 
drainage from raw materials storage.  

Clean Water Act means the federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 USC 1251 et seq.) and any 
subsequent amendments thereto.  

Construction activity means activities subject to NPDES construction permits. Currently, these 
include construction projects resulting in land disturbance of one acre or more. Such activities include, but 
are not limited to, clearing and grubbing, grading, excavating, and demolition.  

Hazardous materials means any material, including any substance, waste, or combination thereof, 
which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics, may 
cause, or significantly contribute to, a substantial present or potential hazard to human health, safety, 
property, or the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of, or otherwise 
managed.  

Illegal discharge means any direct or indirect non-stormwater discharge to the storm drain system, 
except as exempted in this article.  

Illicit connections means either of the following:  

(1)  Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allows an illegal 
discharge to enter the storm drain system, including, but not limited to, any conveyances which 
allow any non-stormwater discharge including sewage, process wastewater, and wash water to 

118

WS #5.



enter the storm drain system and any connections to the storm drain system from indoor drains 
and sinks, regardless of whether the drain or connection had been previously allowed, 
permitted, or approved by an authorized enforcement agency; or  

(2)  Any drain or conveyance connected from a commercial or industrial land use to the storm drain 
system which has not been documented in plans, maps, or equivalent records and approved by 
an authorized enforcement agency.  

Industrial activity means activities subject to NPDES industrial permits as defined in 40 CFR 122.26 
(b)(14).  

National pollutant discharge elimination system (NPDES) stormwater discharge permit means a 
permit issued by EPA (or by a state under authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC 1342(b)) that 
authorizes the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States, whether the permit is applicable on 
an individual, group, or general area-wide basis.  

Non-stormwater discharge means any discharge to the storm drain system that is not composed 
entirely of stormwater.  

Person means any individual, association, organization, partnership, firm, corporation or other entity 
recognized by law and acting as either the owner or as the owner's agent.  

Pollutant means anything which causes or contributes to pollution. Pollutants may include, but are 
not limited to: paints, varnishes, and solvents; oil and other automotive fluids; non-hazardous liquid and 
solid wastes and yard wastes; refuse, rubbish, garbage, litter, or other discarded or abandoned objects, 
ordinances, and accumulations, so that same may cause or contribute to pollution; floatables; pesticides, 
herbicides, and fertilizers; hazardous substances and wastes; sewage, fecal coliform and pathogens; 
dissolved and particulate metals; animal wastes; wastes and residues that result from constructing a 
building or structure; and noxious or offensive matter of any kind.  

Premises means any building, lot, parcel of land, or portion of land whether improved or unimproved 
including adjacent sidewalks and parking strips.  

Storm drainage system means publicly owned facilities by which stormwater is collected or 
conveyed, including, but not limited to, any roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, gutters, curbs, 
inlets, piped storm drains, pumping facilities, retention and detention basins, natural and human-made or 
altered drainage channels, reservoirs, and other drainage structures.  

Stormwater means any surface flow, runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from any form 
of natural precipitation, and resulting from such precipitation.  

Stormwater pollution prevention Plan (SWPPP) means a document which describes the best 
management practices and activities to be implemented by a person or business to identify sources of 
pollution or contamination at a site and the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to 
stormwater, stormwater conveyance systems, or receiving waters to the maximum extent practicable.  

Wastewater means any water or other liquid, other than uncontaminated stormwater, discharged 
from a facility.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-173, 28-189; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(II), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-32. - Applicability.  

This article shall apply to all water entering the storm drain system generated on any developed and 
undeveloped lands unless explicitly exempted by an authorized enforcement agency.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-174, 28-190; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(III), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

119

WS #5.



Sec. 34-33. - Responsibility for administration.  

The city shall administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this article. Any powers granted 
or duties imposed upon the authorized enforcement agency may be delegated in writing by the director of 
public utilities to persons or entities acting in the beneficial interest of or in the employ of the agency.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-175, 28-191; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(IV), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-34. - Ultimate responsibility.  

The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this article are minimum standards; 
therefore, this article does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person will ensure that there will 
be no contamination, pollution, nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-177, 28-193; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(VI), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-35. - Discharge prohibitions.  

(a)  Prohibition of illegal discharges. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the 
municipal storm drain system or watercourses any materials, including, but not limited to, pollutants 
or waters containing any pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable water quality 
standards, other than stormwater. The commencement, conduct or continuance of any illegal 
discharge to the storm drain system is prohibited except as described as follows:  

(1)  The following discharges are exempt from discharge prohibitions established by this article: 
water line flushing or other potable water sources, landscape irrigation or lawn watering, 
diverted stream flows, rising groundwater, groundwater infiltration to storm drains, 
uncontaminated pumped groundwater, foundation or footing drains (not including active 
groundwater dewatering systems), crawl space pumps, air conditioning condensation, springs, 
non-commercial washing of vehicles, natural riparian habitat or wetland flows, swimming pools 
(if dechlorinated, typically less than one ppm chlorine), firefighting activities, and any other water 
source not containing pollutants.  

(2)  Discharges specified in writing by the authorized enforcement agency as being necessary to 
protect public health and safety.  

(3)  Dye testing is an allowable discharge, but requires a verbal notification to the authorized 
enforcement agency prior to the time of the test.  

(b)  When prohibition does not apply. The prohibition shall not apply to any non-stormwater discharge 
permitted under an NPDES permit, waiver, or waste discharge order issued to the discharger and 
administered under the authority of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency, provided that the 
discharger is in full compliance with all requirements of the permit, waiver, or order and other 
applicable laws and regulations, and provided that written approval has been granted for any 
discharge to the storm drain system.  

(c)  Prohibition of illicit connections.  

(1)  The construction, use, maintenance or continued existence of illicit connections to the storm 
drain system is prohibited.  

(2)  This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, illicit connections made in the past, 
regardless of whether the connection was permissible under law or practices applicable or 
prevailing at the time of connection.  

120

WS #5.



(3)  A person is considered to be in violation of this article if the person connects a line conveying 
sewage to the MS4, or allows such a connection to continue.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-178, 28-194; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(VII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-36. - Suspension of MS4 access.  

(a)  Suspension due to illicit discharges in emergency situations. The city may, without prior notice, 
suspend MS4 discharge access to a person when such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or 
threatened discharge which presents or may present imminent and substantial danger to the 
environment, or to the health or welfare of persons, or to the MS4 or waters of the United States. If 
the violator fails to comply with a suspension order issued in an emergency, the authorized 
enforcement agency may take such steps as deemed necessary to prevent or minimize damage to 
the MS4 or waters of the United States, or to minimize danger to persons.  

(b)  Suspension due to the detection of illicit discharge. Any person discharging to the MS4 in violation 
of this article may have their MS4 access terminated if such termination would abate or reduce an 
illicit discharge. The authorized enforcement agency will notify a violator of the proposed termination 
of its MS4 access. The violator may petition the authorized enforcement agency for a reconsideration 
and hearing.  

(c)  MS4 access reinstated to premises without approval. A person commits an offense if the person 
reinstates MS4 access to premises terminated pursuant to this section, without the prior approval of 
the authorized enforcement agency.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-179, 28-195; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(VIII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-37. - Industrial or construction activity discharges.  

Any person subject to an industrial or construction activity NPDES stormwater discharge permit shall 
comply with all provisions of such permit. Proof of compliance with the permit may be required in a form 
acceptable to the director of public utilities prior to the allowing of discharges to the MS4.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180, 28-196; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(IX), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-38. - Monitoring of discharges.  

(a)  Applicability. This section applies to all facilities that have stormwater discharges associated with 
industrial activity, including construction activity.  

(b)  Access to facilities.  

(1)  The utilities director or his designee shall be permitted to enter and inspect facilities subject to 
regulation under this article as often as may be necessary to determine compliance with this 
article. If a discharger has security measures in force which require proper identification and 
clearance before entry into its premises, the discharger shall make the necessary arrangements 
to allow access to representatives of the authorized enforcement agency.  

(2)  Facility operators shall allow the city ready access to all parts of the premises for the purposes 
of inspection, sampling, examination and copying of records that must be kept under the 
conditions of an NPDES permit to discharge stormwater, and the performance of any additional 
duties as defined by state and federal law.  

121

WS #5.



(3)  The city shall have the right to set up on any permitted facility such devices as are necessary in 
the opinion of the authorized enforcement agency to conduct monitoring or sampling of the 
facility's stormwater discharge.  

(4)  The city has the right to require the discharger to install monitoring equipment as necessary. 
The facility's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a safe and 
proper operating condition by the discharger at its own expense. All devices used to measure 
stormwater flow and quality shall be calibrated to ensure their accuracy.  

(5)  Any temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be inspected 
or sampled shall be promptly removed by the operator at the written or oral request of the 
director of public utilities and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access shall be 
borne by the operator.  

(6)  Unreasonable delays in allowing the city access to a permitted facility is a violation of a 
stormwater discharge permit and of this article. A person who is the operator of a facility with a 
NPDES permit to discharge stormwater associated with industrial activity commits an offense if 
the person denies the authorized enforcement agency reasonable access to the permitted 
facility for conducting any activity authorized or required by this article.  

(7)  If the city has been refused access to any part of the premises from which stormwater is 
discharged, and he is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there may be a 
violation of this article, or that there is a need to inspect or sample as part of a routine inspection 
and sampling program designed to verify compliance with this article or any order issued 
hereunder, or to protect the overall public health, safety, and welfare of the community, then the 
authorized enforcement agency may seek issuance of a search warrant from any court of 
competent jurisdiction.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.1, 28-196.1; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(X), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-39. - Prevention, control, and reduction of stormwater pollutants.  

(a)  The city will adopt requirements identifying best management practices for any activity, operation, or 
facility which may cause or contribute to pollution or contamination of stormwater, the storm drain 
system, surface waters or groundwaters.  

(b)  The owner or operator of a commercial or industrial establishment shall provide, at their own 
expense, reasonable protection from accidental discharge of prohibited materials or other wastes 
into the municipal storm drain system or watercourses through the use of these structural and non-
structural BMPs. Further, any person responsible for a property or premises which is, or may be, the 
source of an illicit discharge may be required to implement, at the person's expense, additional 
structural and non-structural BMPs to prevent the further discharge of pollutants to the municipal 
separate storm sewer system.  

(c)  Compliance with all terms and conditions of a valid NPDES permit authorizing the discharge of 
stormwater associated with industrial activity, to the extent practicable, shall be deemed compliance 
with the provisions of this section.  

(d)  BMPs shall be part of a SWPPP as necessary for compliance with requirements of the NPDES 
permit.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.2, 28-196.2; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XI), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-40. - Watercourse protection.  

122

WS #5.



Every person owning property through which a watercourse passes, or such person's lessee, shall 
keep and maintain that part of the watercourse within the property free of trash, debris, excessive 
vegetation, and other obstacles that would pollute, contaminate, or significantly retard the flow of water 
through the watercourse. In addition, the owner or lessee shall maintain existing privately owned 
structures within or adjacent to a watercourse, so that such structures will not become a hazard to the 
use, function, or physical integrity of the watercourse.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.3, 28-196.3; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-41. - Notification of spills.  

(a)  Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible for a facility or 
operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation, has information of any 
known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illegal discharges or 
pollutants discharging into stormwater, the storm drain system, or waters of the nation, the person 
shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment, and cleanup of such release.  

(b)  In the event of a release of hazardous materials, the person shall immediately notify emergency 
response agencies of the occurrence via emergency dispatch services. In the event of a release of 
non-hazardous materials, the person shall notify the authorized enforcement agency in person or by 
phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or by phone shall be 
confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to the director of public utilities within three 
business days of the phone notice.  

(c)  If the discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or industrial establishment, the 
owner or operator of such establishment shall also retain an on-site written record of the discharge 
and the actions taken to prevent its recurrence. Such records shall be retained for at least three 
years.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.4, 28-196.4; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XIII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-42. - Enforcement.  

(a)  Upon violation of a prohibition or failure to meet a requirement of this article, the authorized 
enforcement agency may order compliance by written notice of violation to the responsible person. 
Such notice may require, without limitation:  

(1)  The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting;  

(2)  The elimination of illicit connections or discharges;  

(3)  That violating discharges, practices, or operations shall cease and desist;  

(4)  The abatement or remediation of stormwater pollution or contamination hazards and the 
restoration of any affected property;  

(5)  Payment of a fine to cover administrative and remediation costs; and  

(6)  The implementation of source control or treatment BMPs.  

(b)  If abatement of a violation or restoration of affected property are required, the notice shall set forth a 
deadline within which such remediation or restoration must be completed. The notice shall further 
advise that, should the violator fail to remediate or restore within the established deadline, the work 
will be done by a designated governmental agency or a contractor and the expense thereof shall be 
charged to the violator.  

123

WS #5.



(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.5, 28-197; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XIV), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-43. - Appeal of notice of violation.  

Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the determination of the director of public 
utilities. The notice of appeal must be received within 15 days from the date of the notice of violation. 
Hearing on the appeal before the city manager or his designee shall take place within 15 days from the 
date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision of the city or their designee shall be final.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.6, 28-198; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XV), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-
2013) 

Sec. 34-44. - Enforcement measures after appeal.  

If the violation has not been corrected pursuant to the requirements set forth in the notice of violation 
or, in the event of an appeal, within 30 days of the decision of the municipal authority upholding the 
decision of the authorized enforcement agency, then representatives of the authorized enforcement 
agency shall enter upon the subject private property and are authorized to take the measures necessary 
to abate the violation or restore the property. It is unlawful for any person, owner, agent or person in 
possession of any premises to refuse to allow the government agency or designated contractor to enter 
upon the premises for the purposes set forth above.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.7, 28-199; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XVI), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-45. - Cost of abatement of the violation.  

Within 15 days after abatement of the violation, the owner of the property will be notified of the cost 
of abatement, including administrative costs. The property owner may file a written protest objecting to 
the amount of the assessment within 15 days. If the amount due is not paid within a timely manner as 
determined by the decision of the municipal authority or by the expiration of the time in which to file an 
appeal, the charges shall become a special assessment against the property and shall constitute a lien 
on the property for the amount of the assessment. Any person violating any of the provisions of this article 
shall become liable to the city by reason of such violation. The liability shall be paid in not more than 12 
equal payments. Interest at the rate of percent per annum shall be assessed on the balance beginning on 
the first day following discovery of the violation.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.8, 28-200; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XVII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-46. - Injunction relief.  

It is unlawful for any person to violate any provision or fail to comply with any of the requirements of 
this article. If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this article, the authorized 
enforcement agency may petition for a preliminary or permanent injunction restraining the person from 
activities which would create further violations or compelling the person to perform abatement or 
remediation of the violation.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.9, 28-201; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XVIII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

124

WS #5.



Sec. 34-47. - Alternative compensatory actions authorized.  

In lieu of enforcement proceedings, penalties, and remedies authorized by this article, the city may 
impose upon a violator alternative compensatory actions such as storm drain stenciling, attendance at 
compliance workshops, creek cleanup, etc.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.10, 28-202; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XIX), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-48. - Violations deemed a public nuisance.  

In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided, any condition caused or permitted 
to exist in violation of any of the provisions of this article is a threat to public health, safety, and welfare, 
and is declared and deemed a nuisance, and may be summarily abated or restored at the violator's 
expense, or a civil action to abate, enjoin, or otherwise compel the cessation of such nuisance may be 
taken.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.11, 28-203; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XX), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-49. - Criminal prosecution.  

Any person that has violated or continues to violate this article shall be liable to criminal prosecution 
to the fullest extent of the law, and shall be subject to a criminal penalty of $1,000.00 per violation per day 
or imprisonment for a period of time not to exceed 30 days. The authorized enforcement agency may 
recover all attorneys' fees, court costs and other expenses associated with enforcement of this article, 
including sampling and monitoring expenses.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.12, 28-204; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XXI), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Sec. 34-50. - Remedies not exclusive.  

The remedies listed in this article are not exclusive of any other remedies available under any 
applicable federal, state or local law and it is within the discretion of the authorized enforcement agency 
to seek cumulative remedies.  

(Code 1987, §§ 28-180.13, 28-205; Ord. No. 8216, § 1(XXII), 5-22-2008; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-
22-2013) 

Secs. 34-51—34-76. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE III. - LAND DISTURBANCE  

Sec. 34-77. - Purpose and objectives.  

The purpose of this article is to establish controls on activities related to land disturbance through the 
following objectives:  

(1)  To protect the quality of local streams, lakes, and other bodies of water from the effects of 
increased erosion and sediment discharge.  

125

WS #5.



(2)  To protect the welfare of individuals and their property by reducing the amount of sediment that 
leaves land disturbance sites.  

(3)  To protect the environment and aquatic habitat of fish and other species.  

(4)  To reduce the need for maintenance of storm sewers and ditches as well as the dredging of 
lakes and ponds.  

(Code 1987, § 28-207; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-78. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

City public utilities means the department that has the authority to manage, enforce, and regulate 
land disturbance activities within the city.  

Drainageway means a natural or artificial watercourse, including, but not limited to, streams, rivers, 
creeks, ditches, channels, canals, waterways, gullies, ravines, or washes in which water flows in a definite 
direction or course, either continuously or intermittently, including any area adjacent to it that is subject to 
inundation by reason of overflow or floodwater and meets any of the following conditions:  

(1)  Provides for conveyance of stormwater runoff from an upstream property or development.  

(2)  Defined as waters of the United States by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  

(3)  Supports riparian area or sensitive habitat.  

(4)  Tributary area equal to or greater than 20 acres.  

(5)  Alternation or filling will change the manner in which runoff is discharged onto a downstream 
property and potentially results in a negative impact to that downstream property.  

Erosion control means any method, including the use of best management practices, which reduces 
the potential for soil particles to become dislodged and carried by wind or water.  

Land disturbance includes the grading, digging, cutting, scraping, or excavating of soil, placement of 
fill materials, paving, construction, substantial removal of vegetation, or any activity that bares soil or rock 
or involves the diversion or piping of any natural or manmade watercourse.  

Land disturbance field manual gives requirements and guidance relating to land disturbance, similar 
to the land disturbance manual, but only addresses field requirements and guidance relating to land 
disturbance. It is intended to be used by the person performing the land disturbance and not the engineer 
that develops the plans.  

Land disturbance manager means the person responsible for ensuring that the site is in accordance 
with the standard land disturbance permit as well as performing site inspections and maintaining the 
required records.  

Land disturbance manual gives requirements and guidance relating to land disturbance  

Land disturbance permit means the permit obtained from the city public utilities department prior to 
commencement of land disturbance activities as defined in the most current land disturbance manual.  

Sediment control means any method, including the use of best management practices, used to 
capture or contain sediment particles after they have been eroded.  

Stop work order means a written notice posted at the site of the land disturbance by the city's land 
disturbance inspector that requires land disturbance activities cease until requirements of the stop work 
order are met and signed stop work order release form is obtained. The stop work order is enforceable as 
provided in this Code.  

126

WS #5.



(Code 1987, § 28-208; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-79. - Permits; design and construction requirements.  

(a)  The city shall administer and enforce this article with the issuance of land disturbance permits. 
Requirements and guidance for the land disturbance permit are contained within the most current 
edition of the land disturbance manual with a supplemental land disturbance field manual.  

(b)  Before conducting land disturbance activities that are equal to or greater than one acre, or are part 
of a larger common plan of development or sale that will disturb one or more acres over the life of 
the project within the city limits, a land disturbance permit must be obtained.  

(c)  Before conducting land disturbance activities when installing utilities with 1,000 feet or more of 
length within the city limits, a land disturbance permit must be obtained.  

(d)  Before conducting land disturbance activities located within 100 feet or more of a drainage way 
within the city limits, a land disturbance permit must be obtained.  

(e)  Before conducting fill or excavation of 50 or more cubic yards of material, not related to building of a 
detached single-family residential unit within the city limits, a land disturbance permit must be 
obtained.  

(f)  Land disturbance activities less than one acre in size in the city may require erosion and sediment 
control measures and a land disturbance permit if city public utilities deems it necessary to prevent 
sediment and erosion from occurring.  

(g)  The land disturbance manual with supplemental land disturbance field manual may be updated and 
expanded from time to time at the discretion of the city based on improvements in engineering, 
science, monitoring, or local maintenance experience.  

(h)  In addition to the requirements set forth by the city, all other local, state, and federal permits, 
ordinances, laws, and regulations relating to land disturbance must be followed. Any construction or 
land disturbance activity that will result in the disturbance of one acre or more must obtain a land 
disturbance permit from the state department of natural resources.  

(Code 1987, § 28-209; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-80. - Fees.  

Fees are shown in the appendix of the most current version of the city's land disturbance manual.  

(Code 1987, § 28-210; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-81. - Inspections.  

All land disturbance activities shall be subject to inspection by the city. Representatives of the city 
shall have the right to enter upon any land for making an inspection or acquiring information to determine 
whether the property conforms to the requirements of this article.  

(Code 1987, § 28-211; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-82. - Enforcement.  

The city public utilities department shall have the authority and responsibility to manage, enforce, 
and regulate land disturbance activities within the city.  

127

WS #5.



(Code 1987, § 28-212; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-83. - Violations and penalties.  

(a)  All persons are required to obtain a land disturbance permit before performing any activities that are 
stated in section 34-79. If land disturbance activities are performed without a permit, but require a 
permit, or a level I violation occurs on a permitted site, the city public utilities department will place a 
posted stop work order at the location of the land disturbance activity. This stop work order revokes 
or suspends the land disturbance permit for permitted sites and stops work on permitted and non-
permitted sites. The order shall state what is required prior to continuing the land disturbance activity 
and the time frame in which these actions must occur.  

(1)  In the case that the permit is revoked, reapplication for a permit is required and for suspensions 
the permittee must obtain a signed stop work order release from the city public utilities 
department prior to commencing land disturbance activities.  

(2)  If the stop work order is removed by anyone other than the city, or the land disturbance act 
continues without following the requirements of the stop work order, then the person performing 
the work and the owner of the property are in violation of the land disturbance code.  

(3)  If the land disturbance activities stop after the stop work order is posted at the site but actions 
required by the order are not followed within the time frame stated on the order, then the owner 
of the property is in violation of the land disturbance code.  

(4)  If the property owner chooses stop work and does not obtain or renew a permit, the property 
owner will still be required to reestablish the original topography and vegetation of the site prior 
to the land disturbance activities in a form amenable to the stormwater coordinator within the 
timeframe stated on the stop work order. If the property owner does not reestablish the site to 
standard and time stated in the order, the property owner will be in violation of this land 
disturbance code.  

(5)  Any person violating any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and each day during which any violation of the provisions of this article is 
committed, continued, or permitted, shall constitute a separate offense. Upon conviction of any 
such violation, such person, partnership, or corporation shall be punishable by a fine of not 
more than $1,000.00 for each offense. In addition to any other penalty authorized by this 
section, any person, partnership, or corporation convicted of violating any of the provisions of 
this article shall be required to bear the expense of restoration.  

(b)  The city may revoke a land disturbance permit if failure to comply with any term, condition, limit, 
deadline or other provision of the land disturbance permit occurs.  

(c)  The city may recover all attorneys' fees, court costs, stabilization of disturbed areas, cleanup costs, 
and other expenses associated with enforcement of this article through required fiscal securities and 
any other forms available.  

(Code 1987, § 28-213; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-84. - Appeal of notice of violations.  

Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the determination of the city public utilities 
department. The notice of appeal must be received within 15 days from the date of the notice of violation 
in written form. Hearing on the appeal before the director of public utilities shall take place within 15 days 
from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision of the director of public utilities shall be final.  

(Code 1987, § 28-214; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

128

WS #5.



Secs. 34-85—34-100. - Reserved. 

ARTICLE IV. - POST CONSTRUCTION  

Sec. 34-101. - Purpose and objectives.  

The purpose of this article is to establish controls on the quantity and quality of stormwater released 
from post construction developments through the following objectives:  

(1)  To protect against increased flooding and decreased water quality of downstream areas and 
streams due to effects of development.  

(2)  To protect the welfare of individuals and their property by reducing the effects of development.  

(3)  To protect the environment and aquatic habitat of fish and other species.  

(Code 1987, § 28-215; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-102. - Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings ascribed 
to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Administrative variance means a variance that is considered by the city to be complicated and which 
will require a more extensive review. These administrative variances shall be reviewed by the city 
engineer or outside consultants designated by the city.  

Applicants means the owner and contractor who complete and sign the post-construction stormwater 
permit application.  

Best management practice (BMP) means a measure implemented to control stormwater.  

City public utilities means the department within the city that has the authority and responsibility to 
manage, enforce, and regulate stream buffer activities within the city.  

Construction means the implementation of a proposed plan of improvements by a contractor that 
may include excavating, site grading, utility work, paving, building, and other activities that may contribute 
to the disturbance of land and elevated levels of erosion and sediment.  

Design engineer means the professional engineer responsible for the design of the post-construction 
stormwater BMPs.  

Development means the process of creating new residential, commercial, office, or other land uses 
through the process of construction.  

Drainageway means any natural or artificial watercourse, including, but not limited to, streams, 
rivers, creeks, ditches, channels, canals, waterways, gullies, ravines, or washes in which water flows in a 
definite direction or course, either continuously or intermittently, including any area adjacent to it that is 
subject to inundation by reason of overflow or floodwater and meets any of the following conditions:  

(1)  Provides for conveyance of stormwater runoff from an upstream property or development.  

(2)  Defined as waters of the United States by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers.  

(3)  Supports riparian area or sensitive habitat.  

(4)  Tributary area equal to or greater than 20 acres.  

(5)  Alternation or filling will change the manner in which runoff is discharged onto a downstream 
property and potentially results in a negative impact to that downstream property.  

129

WS #5.



Erosion means the process by which the land surface is worn away by the action of wind, water, ice, 
and gravity.  

Hydrograph means the distribution of runoff over time.  

Inspector means the city representative who visits sites to check for compliance with the post-
construction stormwater permit.  

Permittees means the owner and contractor who obtain a post-construction stormwater permit.  

Post-construction stormwater permit process means the process applicants proceed through to 
obtain a stormwater permit from the city.  

Post-construction stormwater program means the program developed and administered by the city to 
regulate the quantity and quality of stormwater within the incorporated limits of the city.  

Pre-development condition means the natural condition of a site before development occurred.  

Professional engineer means an individual currently registered with the state board of registration as 
a professional engineer, practicing engineering in accordance with state law.  

Sediment basin means an impoundment that captures sediment-laden runoff and releases it slowly, 
providing prolonged settling times to capture coarse and fine-grained soil particles.  

Seeding and mulching means seeding disturbed areas with permanent grasses and spreading straw 
mulch to provide immediate protection against raindrops and wind erosion and, as the grass cover 
becomes established, to provide long-term stabilization of exposed soils.  

Staff variance means a variance that is considered by the city to be minor in nature.  

Stormwater means runoff generated as a result of a precipitation event.  

Stormwater permit means the permit obtained from the city prior to commencement of land-
disturbing activities as defined in the city post-construction stormwater manual.  

Stormwater pollution prevention plan (SWPPP) means the complete package of required information 
submitted to the city for review and acceptance for a land disturbance permit which include drawings, 
land disturbance report, report checklist, and option of probable cost example worksheet.  

Stormwater quality depth (SQD) means the depth of runoff from a one-year 24-hour storm.  

Stormwater quality release rate (SQR) means the discharge that will drain the stormwater quality 
volume from the detention basin in 24 hours.  

Stormwater quality volume (SQV) means the total volume of runoff from a one-year 24-hour storm.  

Time of concentration (tc) means the time it takes for runoff to flow from the hydraulically most 
remote point in the watershed to the point of analysis.  

(Code 1987, § 28-216; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-103. - Permits; design and construction requirements.  

(a)  The city shall administer and enforce this article with the issuance of post-construction stormwater 
permits. Requirements and guidance for the post-construction stormwater permits are contained 
within the most current edition of the post-construction stormwater manual.  

(b)  Before conducting development activities that are equal to or greater than one acre, or are part of a 
larger common plan of development or sale that will develop one or more acres over the life of the 
project within the city limits, a post-construction stormwater permits must be obtained. Other project 
requirements for post-construction stormwater permits are contained within the most current edition 
of the post-construction stormwater manual.  

130

WS #5.



(c)  Development activities less than one acre in size in the city may require post-construction 
stormwater permits if city public utilities deems it necessary.  

(d)  The post-construction stormwater manual may be updated and expanded from time to time at the 
discretion of the city based on changes in rules and regulations of the federal environment protection 
agency and the state department of natural resources, improvements in engineering, science, and 
monitoring, and local maintenance experience.  

(e)  In addition to the requirements set forth by the city, all other local, state, and federal permits, 
ordinances, laws, and regulations of post-construction stormwater manual must be followed.  

(Code 1987, § 28-217; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-104. - Fees.  

Fees are shown in the most current version of the city's post-construction stormwater manual.  

(Code 1987, § 28-218; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-105. - Inspections.  

All post-construction stormwater BMPs shall be subject to inspection by the city. Representatives of 
the city shall have the right to enter upon any land for the purposes of making an inspection or acquiring 
information to determine whether the property conforms to the requirements of this article.  

(Code 1987, § 28-219; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-106. - Enforcement.  

The city public utilities department shall have the authority and responsibility to manage, enforce, 
and regulate post-construction stormwater activities within the city.  

(Code 1987, § 28-220; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-107. - Violations.  

(a)  All persons are required to obtain a post-construction stormwater permit before performing any 
activities that are stated in section 34-103. If activities requiring post-construction stormwater permit 
are performed without a permit, but require one, the city public utilities department will place a posted 
stop work order at the location of the activity. This stop work order stops work on non-permitted sites. 
The order shall state what is required prior to continuing activity and the time frame in which these 
actions must occur.  

(1)  If the stop work order is removed by anyone other than the city, or the act continues without 
following the requirements of the stop work order, then the person performing the work and the 
owner of the property are in violation of the post-construction stormwater code.  

(2)  If the land disturbance activities stop after the stop work order is posted at the site but actions 
required by the order are not followed within the time frame stated in the order, then the owner 
of the property is in violation of the post-construction stormwater code.  

(3)  If the property owner chooses stop work and not obtain a permit, the property owner will still be 
required to reestablish the original topography and vegetation of the site prior to activities in a 
form amenable to the stormwater coordinator within the timeframe stated in the order. If the 

131

WS #5.



property owner does not reestablish the site to standards and time stated in the order the 
property owner will be in violation of this post-construction stormwater code.  

(4)  Any person violating any of the provisions of this article shall be deemed guilty of a 
misdemeanor and each day during which any violation of any of the provisions of this article is 
committed, continued, or permitted, shall constitute a separate offense. Upon conviction of any 
such violation, such person, partnership, or corporation shall be punished by a fine of not more 
than $1,000.00 for each offense. In addition to any other penalty authorized by this section, any 
person, partnership, or corporation convicted of violating any of the provisions of this article 
shall be required to bear the expense of such restoration.  

(b)  The city may revoke a post-construction stormwater permit if failure to comply with any term, 
condition, limit, deadline or other provision of the post-construction stormwater permit occurs.  

(c)  The city may recover, through required fiscal securities and any other forms available, all attorneys' 
fees, court costs, cleanup costs, and other expenses associated with enforcement of this article, 
including, without limitation, the costs of stabilizing disturbed areas and completing necessary post-
construction stormwater BMPs.  

(Code 1987, § 28-221; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013) 

Sec. 34-108. - Appeal of notice of violations.  

Any person receiving a notice of violation may appeal the determination of the city public utilities 
department. The notice of appeal must be received within 15 days from the date of the notice of violation 
in written form. Hearing on the appeal before the director of public utilities shall take place within 15 days 
from the date of receipt of the notice of appeal. The decision of the director of public utilities shall be final.  

(Code 1987, § 28-222; Ord. No. 8799, § 1, 1-22-2013)  

132

WS #5.



 

 

Attachment D 

City of Moberly’s Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Plan 

 
 

 

  

133

WS #5.



 

 

1001 Diamond Ridge, Suite 1100 
Jefferson City, MO 65109 
573.638.5000 
www.barr.com 
 
 

Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Plan 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

Prepared for 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

August 2018 

 

134

WS #5.



 

 
\\barr.com\projects\Jeff City\25 MO\79\25791011 NPDES and Source Water Protect\WorkFiles\Task 1A - SWMP Review\DRAFT IDDEP\Draft IDDE 
8.27.18.docx 
 i  

 

Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Plan 

August 2018 

Contents 
1.0 Introduction ........................................................................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 Illicit Discharge Identification .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.1 Priority Inspection Areas .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

2.2 Identification Plan ........................................................................................................................................................... 3 

2.3 Significant Contributions ............................................................................................................................................. 4 

2.4 Inspection Procedures .................................................................................................................................................. 5 

2.5 Source Tracing ................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

3.0 Illicit Discharge Reporting ................................................................................................................................................ 7 

4.0 Emergency Spill Response Plan ..................................................................................................................................... 8 

5.0 Enforcement ........................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

6.0 Education and Outreach .................................................................................................................................................10 

 

 

  

135

WS #5.



 

 

 
 ii  

 

List of Tables 

Table 2-1 Stormwater Outfall Locations ......................................................................................................................... 4 
Table 2-2 Significant Contributors and Parameters of Concern ........................................................................... 5 
Table 2-3 Outfall Screening Considerations ................................................................................................................. 5 
Table 6-1 City of Moberly Outreach Plan, 2019-2023 ........................................................................................... 10 
 

 

List of Appendices 

Appendix A Priority Inspection Areas Map 

Appendix B MS4 Outfall Map  

Appendix C MS4 Outfall and Illicit Discharge Inspection Form 

Appendix D Emergency Spill Response Plan 

  

136

WS #5.



 

 

 
 1  

 

1.0 Introduction 
The City of Moberly, Missouri has developed this illicit discharge detection and elimination (IDDE) plan in 
accordance with the Missouri Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System (NPDES) State Operating Permit Number MO-R040030 (MS4 Permit) and Ch. 34, Art. II 
of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances (IDDE Ordinance). Per Moberly’s IDDE Ordinance, the purpose of IDDE is 
to provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of Moberly. The plan applies to City 
employees, residents, and workforce, including contractors. The objective of this plan is to develop 
prevention and detection procedures regarding illicit connections and illicit discharges to the City of 
Moberly’s stormwater system. 

Moberly’s MS4 Permit provides the following definitions: 

Illicit Connection means any man-made conveyance connecting an illicit discharge directly to a 
municipal separate storm sewer. 

Illicit Discharge refers to any discharge to a municipal separate storm sewer that is not entirely 
composed of stormwater, except discharges authorized under a NPDES permit (other than the NPDES 
permit for discharges from the MS4) and discharges resulting from emergency fire-fighting activities. 

Ch. 34, Art. II, Section 34-31 of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances further defines an illicit connection illegal 
(illicit) discharge: 

Illicit Connection means either of the following:  Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or 
subsurface, which allows an illegal discharge to enter the storm drain system including but not limited to 
any conveyances which allow any non-storm water discharge including sewage, process wastewater, and 
wash water to enter the storm drain system and any connections to the storm drain system from indoor 
drains and sinks, regardless of whether said drain or connection had been previously allowed, permitted, 
or approved by an authorized enforcement agency; or, any drain or conveyance connected from a 
commercial or industrial land use to the storm drain system which has not been documented in plans, 
maps, or equivalent records and approved by an authorized enforcement agency. 

Illegal Discharge means any direct or indirect non-stormwater discharge to the storm drain system, 
except as exempted (in Ch. 34, Art. II of Moberly’s Code of Ordinances).  

The following discharges are exempt by Moberly’s IDDE ordinance, Ch. 34, Art. II, Section 34-35: 

• Water line flushing or other potable water sources; 
• Landscape irrigation or lawn watering; 
• Diverted stream flows; 
• Rising groundwater; 
• Groundwater infiltration to storm drains; 
• Uncontaminated pumped groundwater; 

137

WS #5.



 

 

 
 2  

 

• Founding or footing drains (not including active groundwater dewatering systems); 
• Crawl space pumps; 
• Air conditioning condensation; 
• Springs; 
• Non-commercial washing of vehicles; 
• Natural riparian habitat or wetland flows; 
• Swimming pools, if dechlorinated (typically less than 1 ppm chlorine); 
• Fire-fighting activities; 
• Discharges specified in writing by the authorized enforcement agency as being necessary to 

protect public health and safety; 
• Dye testing, upon verbal notification to the authorized enforcement agency; and 
• Any other water source not containing pollutants. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

138

WS #5.



 

 

 
 3  

 

2.0 Illicit Discharge Identification 
The following sections describe the methods for identification of an illicit discharge to the City’s municipal 
separate storm sewer system. The release or suspected release of an illicit discharge should be reported to 
the appropriate authorities, as described in Section 2.5. To prevent and detect illicit discharges, the City 
will inspect stormwater outfalls regularly, identify and inspect priority areas, and address illicit discharges, 
as needed.  

2.1 Priority Inspection Areas 
The City has identified priority inspection areas, by considering the following criteria:  

• Areas with older infrastructure 

• Areas that have primarily industrial and/or commercial use  

• Areas with a history of past illicit discharges 

• Areas with on-site sewage disposal systems 

• Areas upstream of sensitive waters 

• Areas that are susceptible to flooding 

• Areas of active development 

• Areas with significant shipping container activity or transport 

• Transportation corridors 

• Large paved areas or parking lots 

• Gas stations and truck stops 

• City Parks Department properties 

• Distribution centers 

• Vehicle service centers 

Using the above criteria, the City has identified priority inspection areas, and had marked these locations 
for focused inspection on a map of the City, as shown in Appendix A. A minimum schedule for inspection 
of priority areas is described in Section 2.2. 

2.2 Identification Plan 
As discussed in Section 1.0 of Moberly’s Stormwater Management Plan (SWMP), Moberly has identified 19 
stormwater outfalls that discharge to four major drainage areas within the City (see Table 2-1). Appendix B 
includes a map with the locations of stormwater outfalls within the City. The City plans to inspect outfalls 
on a regular basis to provide for the health and safety of the public.  

139

WS #5.



 

 

 
 4  

 

Table 2-1 Stormwater Outfall Locations  

Outfall Latitude Longitude Northing Easting 
Outfall #1 39.4438919100 -92.4356272600 1314663.51800 1658595.76200 

Outfall #2 39.4349428027 -92.4187611349 1311407.86000 1663361.75400 

Outfall #3 39.4347522118 -92.4186753925 1311338.46400 1663386.03300 

Outfall #4 39.4275576337 -92.4138551980 1308719.27434 1664749.95433 

Outfall #5 39.4274803181 -92.4138157183 1308691.12463 1664761.13304 

Outfall #6 39.4198616297 -92.4188547619 1305914.88300 1663340.25000 

Outfall #7 39.4193398413 -92.4162672727 1305725.50200 1664071.39400 

Outfall #8 39.4087674705 -92.4303522776 1301871.39800 1660095.31300 

Outfall #9 39.4084300844 -92.4211034938 1301750.66400 1662708.62200 

Outfall #10 39.4047116099 -92.4340243932 1300393.37500 1659058.85300 

Outfall #11 39.4018162559 -92.4265951112 1299340.43700 1661158.94200 

Outfall #12 39.3887017097 -92.4127273553 1294567.29400 1665082.22100 

Outfall #13 39.3940471351 -92.4203849338 1296512.22400 1662916.27000 

Outfall #14 39.3934263806 -92.4254498918 1296284.90800 1661485.07500 

Outfall #15 39.3930886900 -92.4283153100 1296161.25800 1660675.38400 

Outfall #16 39.4027355400 -92.4521996200 1299670.40500 1653923.60900 

Outfall #17 39.4109356000 -92.4443177100 1302658.34500 1656148.95600 

Outfall #18 39.4205053800 -92.4747562900 1306140.04300 1647547.96500 

Outfall #19 39.4349030643 -92.4519731598 1311386.66500 1653981.36400 

Note: The coordinate system used is NAD83 State Plane Missouri Central (in feet), and this data is in standard UTM zone 15. 

Based on the priority inspection areas established in Figure 1, Moberly will develop a list of areas of 
highest priority for inspection. The first inspection year will include inspections of the highest priority 
areas and any associated outfalls located in these areas. After the first year of inspections, Moberly plans 
to annually inspect a minimum of 25% of their total outfalls and at least one priority inspection area. 
Additional information regarding outfall inspections is provided in Section 2.3. 

2.3 Significant Contributions 
Moberly has identified the following significant contributors and their related parameters of concern (see 
Table 2-2). The City may sample for parameters of concern at each outfall, if deemed necessary, to trace 
potential illicit detections track significant contributions over time. Table 2-2 will be periodically reviewed 
by the City and updated as needed.  

 

 

140

WS #5.



 

 

 
 5  

 

Table 2-2 Significant Contributors and Parameters of Concern 

Significant Contributors Pollutants of Concern 
On-site sewer systems E. coli 

Animal waste E. coli 

Shipping container activity/transport Incidental or accidental releases of chemicals/products 

Litter Debris, sediment 

Residential chemical use Pesticides/herbicides 

Agricultural activities Fertilizers, pesticides, E. coli 

Vehicle service stations Petroleum products 

 
2.4 Inspection Procedures 
Dry and wet weather outfall screening will occur annually, according to the outfall inspection plan 
provided in Section 2.2. Considerations for both dry and wet weather screening are provided in Table 2-3. 
Field observations and outfall sampling (when needed) will be performed during the inspections to further 
evaluate discharges. An inspection form for outfall inspections is provided in Appendix C.  

Table 2-3 Outfall Screening Considerations 

Screening Type Strategies/Considerations 
 
Dry weather 

• Appropriate screening times include during dry 
weather (a minimum of 48 hours after a rain event) 
when trees are not shedding 

• If necessary, place sandbags at the outfall to pond 
flow for sampling 

• Note travel of stormwater 
• Complete the inspection form, collect a grab 

sample, and document the inspection with 
photographs 

Wet weather • Appropriate screening times include during wet 
weather (a maximum of 48 hours after a rain event 
but preferably within 24 hours)  

• Note travel of stormwater 
• Complete the inspection form, collect a grab 

sample, and document the inspection with 
photographs 

 

Sampling will include a grab sample at each outfall, which will be analyzed in-house at the City’s 
laboratory. If the City decides to further investigate a particular pollutant source, the City may also use a 

141

WS #5.



 

 

 
 6  

 

certified laboratory for sample analysis. The list of parameters that the City may sample for include, but 
are not limited to: 

• 5-day biological oxygen demand (BOD5) 
• Ammonia (NH3) 
• Chemical oxygen demand (COD) 
• Chloride 
• Chlorine 
• Conductivity 
• E. coli 
• Hardness, Total 
• Metals, Total 
• Nitrogen, Total 
• Oil and grease 
• pH 
• Phosphorus, Total 
• Surfactants 
• Temperature 
• Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 

Data from each outfall inspection and sample analysis will be kept in City records, so that stormwater 
quality data can be reviewed or analyzed as needed. 

2.5 Source Tracing 
If evidence of an illicit discharge is reported to Moberly or discovered during an inspection, the Public 
Utility Department will take the following steps: 

1. The inspector will systematically examine structures upstream of the discovered discharge until 
evidence of the discharge is no longer present or a source is located.  

2. The inspector may take sample(s) of the discharge upstream and at the outfall to determine 
potential sources.  

3. The inspector will attempt, through systematic inspection (and using data, if needed), to locate 
the source of the illicit discharge.  

4. If a source cannot be located through systematic inspections, then Moberly may also consider dye 
testing, televising, or smoke testing as additional tools to help identify the source. 

5. Once the potential source is discovered, Moberly will identify and contact the responsible party to 
initiate corrective actions. Section 3.0 provides further detail regarding illicit discharge 
enforcement. 

  

142

WS #5.



 

 

 
 7  

 

3.0 Illicit Discharge Reporting 
In the event of an illicit discharge, or upon the suspected release of an illicit discharge, emergency 
response agencies will be notified immediately.   

Federal law requires the responsible party to report any release of oil if it reaches or threatens a sewer, 
lake, creek, stream, river, groundwater, wetland, or area like a road ditch that drains into one of the above. 
If applicable, report oil releases to: 

National Response Center 
(800)-424-8802 

It is required by state law that spills of a petroleum product in excess of 50 gallons be reported to the 
MDNR. Spills of hazardous materials should be reported to both the MDNR and the City immediately. In 
addition, any reportable spills of oil or any spills of hazardous materials will be reported to the following 
number: 

Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
24-hour Spill Line 
(573) 634-2436 

In the event of any type spill that is reported to the state or federal government, the City will also be 
notified. 

City of Moberly, Public Utility Department  
(660) 269-8705, ext. 2073 
 
City of Moberly, Police Department 
(660) 263-0346 
 
In the event of a release of a non-hazardous material, authorized enforcement agencies will be notified in 
person or by phone no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or by phone shall be 
confirmed by written notice addressed to the Director of Public Utilities within three business days of the 
original notice.  

If the discharge of prohibited materials originates at a commercial or industrial establishment, the owner 
or operator of such establishment shall also retain an on-site written record for a minimum of three years 
that includes a description of the discharge and actions taken to prevent its recurrence.  

 

 

 

143

WS #5.



 

 

 
 8  

 

4.0 Emergency Spill Response Plan 
The City’s Emergency Spill Response Plan provides procedures for city staff to respond to and mitigate 
releases and spills. The City maintains this plan and ensures that all appropriate city staff have access to a 
copy of the plan. Emergency responders are trained to respond to spills and releases and to take 
appropriate safety measures.   

Emergency responders will coordinate with the City’s Public Utility Department to notify them of releases. 
If the release or spill is from an unknown source, the City will attempt to identify the source of the release 
using the procedures outlined in Section 2.5. The City’s current Emergency Spill Response Plan is provided 
in Appendix D.   

144

WS #5.



 

 

 
 9  

 

5.0 Enforcement 
If a person or entity that violates a prohibition or failed to meet a requirement of Chapter 34, Article II of 
Moberly’s IDDE ordinance, the authorized enforcement agency may order compliance by written Notice of 
Violation to the responsible person. Such notice may require without limitation: 

1. The performance of monitoring, analyses, and reporting; 

2. The elimination of illicit connections or discharges; 

3. That violating discharges, practices, or operations shall cease and desist; 

4. The abatement or remediation of stormwater pollution or contamination hazards and the 
restoration of any affected property;  

5. Payment of a fine to cover administrative and remediation costs; and  

6. The implementation of source control or treatment Best Management Practices (BMPs). 

Violators may also be subject to suspension of their MS4 discharge access and criminal prosecution to the 
fullest extent of the law. 

If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected property are required, the notice shall set forth a 
deadline within which such remediation or restoration must be completed. Said notice shall further advise 
that, should the violator fail to remediate or restore within the established deadline, the work will be done 
by a designated governmental agency or a contractor and the expense thereof shall be charged to the 
violator. 

Violators have the option to appeal a Notice of Violation; Moberly’s decision regarding an appeal shall be 
final. If violations not corrected as outlined in the Notice of Violation or hearing decision, authorized 
enforcement agencies may take any and all measures necessary to abate the violation and/or restore the 
property and the property owner will be notified of the abatement costs within 15 days after abatement. 
The property owner may file a written protest of the abatement costs within 15 days of the assessment.  

In lieu of enforcement proceedings, penalties, and remedies authorized by Chapter 34, Article II of 
Moberly’s Code of Ordinances, Moberly may impose alternative compensatory actions upon a violator, 
such as storm drain stenciling, attendance at compliance workshops, creek clean-ups, etc. 

 

 

 

  

145

WS #5.



 

 

 
 10  

 

6.0 Education and Outreach 
Education and outreach efforts are performed by the City to inform citizens about IDDE. Educational 
materials developed by the City of Moberly are included in Attachment B of Moberly’s Stormwater 
Management Plan. For the 2019-2023 MS4 Permit cycle, the City of Moberly will conduct IDDE outreach 
activities to businesses, industries, and the public on a calendar year basis, as outlined in Table 6-1. The 
City will continue to develop outreach methods and will add to this list, as needed. Moberly’s Stormwater 
Management Plan provides additional information regarding stormwater education and outreach for the 
City.  

Table 6-1 City of Moberly Outreach Plan, 2019-2023 

Outreach Type/Event Outreach Targets Outreach Methods 

Printed Brochures Business owners, developers, 
general public Written information 

Breakfast Education Meeting Industry-specific targets In-person presentations, written 
information 

Education Conference with 
Economic Development  and 
Chamber of Commerce 

Business owners, industry, 
developers, general public 

In-person presentations, written 
information 

Meetings with Developers/Land-
owners on Construction Activities Industry, developers, land-owners In-person communication, written 

information 

 

 

146

WS #5.



 

 

Appendix A 

Priority Inspection Areas Map 

 

 
  

147

WS #5.



£¤24

£¤63

£¤63

A

M

EE

JJ

DD

AA

C
O

U
N

TY
R

D
16

9

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

D
 1

34

C
O

U
N

TY
R

D
1 0

4

COUNTY RD 131

COUNTY RD 133

COUNTY RD 170

COUNTY RD 127

COUNTY RD 172

COUNTY RD 269

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

D
 1

68

COUNTY RD 135

COUNTY RD 176

COUNTY RD 167

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

D
 1

03

C
O

U
N

TY
 R

D
 1

75
X

C
O

U
N

TY
R

D
10

2

C
O

U
N

T Y
R

D
1 3

0

MCKINSEY ST

SINNOCK AVE

HO
LM

AN
 RD

FISK AVE

GR
AT

Z B
RO

WN
 ST

UNION AVE

OM
AR

 BR
AD

LE
Y D

R

FRANKLIN ST

WI
LL

IAM
S S

T

RO
BE

R T
SO

N
RD

ROLLINS ST

SPARKS AVE

BU
CH

AN
AN

ST

MO
RL

EY
 ST

CONCANNON ST

1410

ST
UR

GE
ON

 ST

SIL
VA

 LN

BEUTH RD

CARPENTER ST

FOWLER RD

GILMAN RD

LE
AH

 LN

RILEY INDUSTRIAL BLVD
JO

HN
SO

N 
ST

KWIX RD

ROTHWELLPARK RD

Priority Area H

Priority Area I

Priority Area K

Priority Area N

Priority Area D
Priority Area C

Priority Area E

Priority Area A

Priority Area B

Priority Area L

Priority Area J

Priority Area G

Priority Area F

Priority Area M

Moberly

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.6, 2018-08-09 11:27 File: I:\Projects\25\79\1011\Maps\Reports\NPDES_Source_Water_Protect\Priority_Inspection_Areas\Figure 01 Priority Inspection Areas.mxd User: MRQ

PRIORITY INSEPECTION
AREAS

City of Moberly, MO
0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Feet

!;NMunicipal Boundary
Inspection Area

Imagery: Digital Globe, 2016

148

WS #5.



 

 

Appendix B 

MS4 Outfall Map  

149

WS #5.



#0

#0

#0

#0

!H

!H!H

!H!H

!H !H

!H !H

!H

!H

!H

!H
!H!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

Outfall 1

Outfall 2
Outfall 3

Outfall 4Outfall 5

Outfall 6
Outfall 7

Outfall 8 Outfall 9

Outfall 10

Outfall 11

Outfall 12

Outfall 13Outfall 14
Outfall 15

Outfall 16

Outfall 17

Outfall 18

Outfall 19

Outfall #002 -
Taylor Street CSO

Outfall #003 -
Rollins Street CSO

Outfall #004 -
Seven Bridges Road CSO

Outfall #005 -
Holman Road CSO

Moberly

Co
on

Cr
e ek

Elk
For

k S
alt

Riv
er

Coy Branch

S ugar Cree
k

Sweet Spring Creek

900

750

800

850

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.6, 2018-07-15 12:36 File: I:\Projects\25\79\1011\Maps\Reports\NPDES_Source_Water_Protect\2018\Figure02 MS4 Moberly Outfalls.mxd User: MRQ

MOBERLY MS4 OUTFALLS
City of Moberly
Moberly, MO0 3,250 6,500

Feet

!;N!H Proposed Outfall Location

#0
Combined Sewer Overflow
Locations (Approximate)
National Hydrography Dataset
(NHD) Flowline

Municipal Boundary
Surface Elevation Contours

50 foot
10 foot

150

WS #5.



 

 

Appendix C 

MS4 Outfall and Illicit Discharge Inspection Form  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

151

WS #5.



City of Moberly 
MS4 Outfall and Illicit Discharge Inspection Form 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Outfall Number:     Watershed/Priority Area: 
 
Date: ____________________  Time: _____________________ Inspector: _____________________ 
 
Weather:   Clear     Overcast     Rain 
 
Rain Totals: in 24 hours: ___________ in 48 hours: ____________ 
 
Sample #:  ___________________ 
 
Photo #(s):  _________________ 
 
SITE INFORMATION 
 
Flow Observed:   Yes    No   Channelized Flow:   Yes    No  
 
Erosion at Outfall:    Yes    No  
 
VISUAL OBSERVATIONS 
 
Biological:    Fish    Algae    Eggs    Bacteria    Larvae    Iron Bacteria 
   Other: ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Clarity / Color:    None    Clear    Opaque    Gray    Red    Green   Yellow    Brown 
   Other: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Deposits / Stains:   None    Mineralization    Petroleum    Sediments  
   Other: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Floatable:    None    Litter    Oil Sheen    Sewage    Suds    
   Other: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Odor:     None    Petroleum    Sewage    Rotten Eggs (Sulfur)   Musty 
   Other: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Structural Condition:   Normal    Cracking    Spalling    Corrosion    Clogged    
   Other: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Vegetation Condition:   Normal    Inhibited Growth    Bare    Excessive Growth    
   Other: ________________________________________________________________  
 
Comments:  __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                               
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

152

WS #5.



 
RECOMMENDED FOLLOW-UP 
 
 Contact landowner      ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Conduct tracing/sampling of discharge ____________________________________________________________________________ 
    
 Follow up on reported concern     ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Other actions needed   ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Additional Comments:  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

153

WS #5.



 

 

Appendix D 

  Emergency Spill Response Plan  

 

 
 

 

154

WS #5.



 

 

Emergency Response Plan 

 for Spills and Illicit Discharges 

Department of Public Utilities 

City of Moberly, MO 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Compiled by Geri Blakey 

155

WS #5.



 1 

Emergency Response Plan for Spills and Illicit Discharges 

Department of Public Utilities 

City of Moberly, MO 

Spill Response Plan  

Introduction: 

Hazardous materials incidents are a fact of life in communities around the world 

and must be recognized as such. Catastrophic emergencies created by 

hazardous materials incidents may pose a serious threat to the local WasteWater 

Treatment Facility, sewer systems and area waterways. Municipalities and local 

governments are often completely on their own during the first stage of almost 

any hazardous materials incident. The City of Moberly Public Utilities Department 

shall strive to be prepared for such incidents with an Emergency Response Plan 

designed to handle hazardous materials. The goal of this plan is to protect the 

community and the environment served by the City of Moberly’s WasteWater 

Treatment Facility.  

Catastrophic emergencies that may be encountered include: 

 Railroad or trucking accidents involving toxic, flammable or explosive 

chemicals or strong, highly corrosive acids or bases,  

 Accidents involving radioactive materials, 

 Accidents involving unknown substances, 

 Spills, accidental and/or deliberate discharges by industries, 

 Spills, accidental and/or deliberate discharges by individuals, 

 

In the event the Public Utilities Emergency Response Plan should overlap with 

the Randolph County Local Emergency Operations Plan, the Randolph County 

Local Emergency Operations Plan shall take precedence.  

 

 

 

 

 

156

WS #5.



 2 

Purpose:  

The purpose of this document is to outline the Department of Public Utilities’ 

coordinated spill response plan and procedures. This document will be used as a 

reference by the Public Utilities, Police and Fire Department staff and all other 

entities that may be involved in fielding calls and/or responding to incidents. This 

document is intended to reflect the essential steps necessary to initiate, conduct 

and terminate an emergency response action. 

 

Definitions: 

“Hazardous Materials” generally refers to petroleum, petroleum products, 

radioactive materials, acutely toxic chemicals and other toxic chemicals. 

 

“LEOP” refers to the Randolph County Local Emergency Operations Plan, 

revised 3/30/2004.  

 

“RCRA” refers to the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (of 1976). This 

act established a framework for the proper management and disposal of all 

wastes. 

 

“Receiving Stream” is defined as any body of water that receives discharge 

from the City of Moberly sanitary, combined and/or separate sewer system and is 

permitted through the MoDNR 

 

  “Spill” is defined as any discharge, accidental or deliberate, that may enter the 

“Waters of the State” and has or may have the potential to harm humans, wildlife 

and/or the environment. This definition also includes any discharge, accidental or 

deliberate, that may cause harm to the Municipal Wastewater Treatment Facility 

and/or “pass through”, untreated, into the environment. 

 

 “Waters of the State” means any and/or all rivers, streams, creeks, branches, 

lakes, reservoirs, ponds, drainage systems, springs, wells, and other bodies of 

157

WS #5.



 3 

surface and subsurface water, natural and artificial, lying within or forming a part 

of the boundaries of the State of Missouri which are not entirely confined or 

retained completely upon the property of a single person. 

 

 “WWTF” is an acronym for the City of Moberly’s Waste Water Treatment 

Facility. The facility is located approximately 2.5 miles east of Moberly, on State 

Rd EE. Turn north on County Rd 2350. Turn west immediately after crossing the 

RR tracks. 

 

Plan Distribution: 

The following will receive a copy of the Spill Response Plan: 

City Manager, 

Director of Public Utilities, 

Chief Operator, WWTF, 

Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator, 

Distribution and Collection Superintendent, 

Distribution and Collection Foreman, 

Public Works Director, 

Public Works  

Fire Department, Chief 

Fire Department LEOP Coordinator, 

Police Department, Chief, 

Police Department, Assistant Chief, 

 

NOTE:  

According to the National Response Team, Emergency Planning Guide this plan 

should be made available to the public for comment and/or revue. Web site? City 

Hall? 

 

 

 

158

WS #5.



 4 

The spill response plan includes: 

1. Contact appropriate individuals, 

2. Control the area of concern, 

3. Contain the spill, 

4. Cleanup the area. 

 

1.  Contact 

A. Spills may be reported by the following: 

Local citizens, 

City employees, 

State/County employees, 

Commercial/Industrial employees or officials, 

Health Department, 

Police Department, 

Highway Patrol 

 

B. Spills may be reported to the following departments: 

911 emergency, 

Fire Department, 

Police Department 

Public Utilities Department, 

Street Department, 

Randolph County Sheriff’s Office, 

Randolph County Health Department, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

159

WS #5.



 5 

C. Assistance from other Departments 

1. The Moberly Police Department: 660.263.0346 

Command center, 

Activation of notification processes, 

Traffic and crowd control, 

Evacuation procedures,  

The command center will complete a message form (see Attachment A) for each 

message sent or received.  

NOTES: 

 In the event evacuation procedures are required, the Randolph County LEOP 

will take effect. 

In the event evacuation procedures require “safe housing” for the evacuees, the 

Randolph County LEOP will take effect. 

 

2. The Moberly Fire Department: 660.269.8705 ext. 2035 

Coordination center, 

Containment supplies, including:  

Hazmat contacts, 

List of chemicals used by individual industries, 

Fire control 

Search and Rescue, 

SCBA equipment, 

Radiological Monitoring Equipment, One (1) Self Support Kit, 

Personnel emergency first aide/medical treatment, 

General public first aide/medical treatment, 

NOTE: 

 In the event City personnel or the general public require emergency first aide 

and or medical treatment the Randolph County LEOP will take effect. 

 

 

 

160

WS #5.



 6 

3. Water Department, Distribution and Collection 

Available resources 

Personnel 

Blower, 

Vactor truck, 

Traffic cones, 

Traffic signage, 

Barricades, 

Portable pumps, 

Gas meter, 

Safety vests, 

Vehicles, 

Backhoe (2) 

Mini excavator  

Equipment operators, 

 

4. Public Works/Street Department 

Available resources 

Personnel, 

Vehicles, 

Traffic cones, 

Traffic signage, 

Backhoe, 

End loader, 

Safety vests, 

Sand, 

Barricades, 

Equipment operators, 

 

 

 

161

WS #5.



 7 

5. Wastewater Department 

Available Resources  

Personnel, 

Tractor, 

Personal floatation devices, 

Boat/oars, 

Vehicles, 

Equipment operator, 

 

6. Parks Department 

Available resources 

Boat/Motor 

Vehicles 

Personnel 

 

7. Radio Station 

Public announcements 

 

8. Industry Contacts 

See attachment E 

 

9. MoDNR Emergency Response Personnel 

  

10.  USEPA Emergency Response Personnel 

 

 

 

 

 

162

WS #5.



 8 

In the event of a major spill and/or chemical hazards the Director of Public 

Utilities shall be notified first and be recognized as the “person in 

authority”. 

The “person in authority” will take notes of all events to the best of his/her ability. 

These notes shall contain: 

Names of persons contacted and the time of contact. 

Brief statement concerning the reason for the contact. 

Decisions made concerning the spill and/or containment and/or clean up. 

 

City Manager 

Brian Crane 

Office: 660.269.9907 

Cell: 660.998.0137 

Home address: 812 Fox Run Moberly, Mo 

 

Director of Public Utilities 

Mary West 

Office: 1.660.269.7659 

Work Cell: 660.651.7565 

Home address: 514 E. Rollins 

The Director of Public Utilities, or his/her designee, shall be responsible for any 

press releases to the local radio stations, newspaper and/or any other local 

media.  

 

In the event the Director is unavailable The WWTF Chief Operator shall be 

notified. 

 

 

 

 

 

163

WS #5.



 9 

WWTF Chief Operator 

Ben Riles 

WWTF: 1.660.269.9437 

WWTF Cell: 1.660.998.0145 

Personal Cell: 1.660.353.8041 

Home address: 1682 CR 2756 Moberly                   

The following is a list of personnel that may need to be notified in the event of an 

emergency spill: 

 

WWTF Operator 

Doug Farrow 

Work: 1.660.269.9437 

Cell” 660.676.3684 

Home address: 711 E. Terrilll Rd 

 

Industrial Pretreatment Coordinator 

Del Hulett 

Office: 1.660.269.9437 

Personal Cell: 1.660.833.9969 

Home address: 1817 CR 2285 Moberly, Mo 

 

Storm Water Management 

Geri Blakey 

Office: 660.263.7164 

Cell: 660.353.9769 

Home address: 606 E. Terrill Rd Moberly, Mo 

 

Superintendent, Water Distribution and Collection 

Tim Patrick 

Work Cell: 660.998.0127 

Home address: 2107 Highway M, Moberly 

164

WS #5.



 10

Foreman, Water Distribution and Collection 

Chris Bohm 

Work cell: 660.998.0128 

 

Public Works/Street Department 

Tim Grimsley 

Office: 660.269.9451   

Work cell: 660.651.6878 

Home address: 2644 CR 2480 Higbee, MO 

 

Roger Young 

Office: 660.269.9450 

Cell: 660.353.1628 

 

Water Filtration Plant 

Chief Operator: Matt Everts 

Work phone: 660.269.9410 

Cell: 660.353.8058 

Home Address: 1059 PR 1224 Moberly, Mo 

 

Fire Department 

Fire Chief: George Albert 

 Office: 660.269.7635 

Cell: 660.353.0790 

Home address: 1000 Shelby Dr 6A Moberly, Mo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

165

WS #5.



 11

Police Department 

Troy Link 

Office: 660.269.7629 

Cell: 660.651.5104 

Home address: 730 Meadowbrook Cir Moberly, Mo 

Watch Commander 

Cell: 660.998.0125 

 

Parks and Recreation Department 

Troy Bock 

Cell: 660.998.0139 

 

Emergency Management Director 

Jim Charrier 

Phone: 660.353.0368 

 

MoDNR Emergency Response Team 

 

EPA Emergency Response Team 

 

In the event the material is not an immediate threat to life and property 

Notification will be limited to: 

a. Director of Public Utilities, 

b. Wastewater treatment facility, Chief Operator, 

c. Industrial pretreatment inspector, 

d. Collection system personnel,  

e. Storm water management  

f. Other concerned or involved agencies (MoDNR, EPA), 

 

 

 

166

WS #5.



 12

2. Control 

The initial size-up and risk/benefit analysis of all tactical considerations shall be 

identified early in the incident. This will have a major impact on the 

recovery/clean up processes later. 

 

First Responders. 

The priorities for all who respond to hazardous materials incidents are first, 

protecting life, second, protecting the environment and third, protecting property 

and equipment. 

 

The first responder on the scene will: 

1. Evaluate the situation as quickly as possible with out putting him/herself in 

danger, 

 

Questions of importance 

A. Will traffic control be needed? 

Moberly Police Department 

B. Will the area need to be barricaded? 

Street Department, 

D and C Crew, 

 

C. Will the spill require evacuation in the immediate area of the spill, along the 

path the spill will travel? How large a buffer area is needed? 

Toxic fumes, 

Explosive possibility, 

Police Dept, 

 

D. Can the spill be contained before it enters the stormwater drainage system or 

any waters of the state? 

 

167

WS #5.



 13

2. Contact the command center to activate the notification procedure, Initially, 

the first responder on the scene should only have to make one phone call. 

The command center will relay all information to the appropriate departments 

and personnel involved. 

 

3. The following information shall be reported to the command center:  

Physical address of the spill, 

Contaminants present, if known and/or possible contaminants, 

Present dangers/hazards, if known and/or possible dangers/hazards, i.e. 

flammability, explosion potential, etc., 

Personnel to be notified, 

Departments to be notified, 

Equipment and/or supplies needed, 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

168

WS #5.



 14

3.Containment 

Because protection of the environment is second only to protection of life, the 

tactical consideration used to handle a hazardous material emergency must be 

based on the overall effect those tactics will have on the environment. 

 

When formulating tactical considerations aimed at minimizing impact to the 

environment, the emergency responders are simultaneously improving the 

recovery potential and minimizing the clean up that is required.  

 

Procedure to follow in the event the spill is flammable, toxic and/or 

hazardous. 

A. Flammable, Toxic and/or hazardous materials. 

Questions of importance: 

1. Is the source of the spill known? 

a. If yes, request all MSDSs related to the material.  

b. If no, request the aid of the Hazmat Crew via the Moberly Fire Department. 

(Response time will be at least 1 hour.) 

2. What is the approximate volume of the spill? 

3. What field test equipment is available for immediate use? 

a. pH meter for acidic or base conditions, 

b. gas detector for flammability, 

(What field test equipment is available from the MFD?) 

 

4. Can the spill be contained before it enters the sanitary sewer and /or 

stormwater system? 

a) Storm drains blocked, 

b) Sand bags, 

c) Pillows, 

d) Vactor truck, 

e) Containers, 

f) Sump hole, 

169

WS #5.



 15

In the event the spill has reached the sanitary sewer and/or stormwater 

system. 

Questions of importance: 

1. Can the system, in the area of the spill either minimize gas accumulation or 

enhance the opportunity for release of gases? 

2. Is the system, in the area of the spill gravity flow or force main? 

3. Are there any dead spots in the system, downstream of the spill that may 

cause flammables to accumulate?  

4. What oxidants are present in the system that may support flammability or 

promote explosion? 

a. Oxygen, 

b. Hydrogen peroxide,  

c. Chlorine gas, 

 

Notes: 

1. Compounds that present the biggest risk to the sewage system are 

flammable liquids with low solubility, are lighter than water and have low 

boiling points or high vapor pressures (volatile). Liquid hydrocarbons are 

confirmed to pose a significant danger of fire or explosion in a wastewater 

mixture.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

170

WS #5.



 16

Assess the situation: 

1. If unknown, use the gas detector at nearby manholes to determine 

flammability.   

a. In the event the material is known to be or is determined to be flammable, 

manhole covers can be removed at all locations where gas is detected in 

order to dissipate or dilute the gas. An attendant or a barrier should be left at 

the open manholes.  

b. If a manhole upstream of the spill can be located where the gas is yet 

undetectable, a blower can be used to dissipate the gas. Make certain, 

before the blower is started that NO gas is detectable as the blower may 

spark and ignite any gas that is present. If a blower can be used, replace all 

manhole covers along the route. This will prevent the fresh air introduced into 

the sewer from escaping through the path of least resistance. 

2. Whenever possible shut down the pumps at the closest lift station 

downstream of the spill in order to contain the material.  

 

3. The vactor truck can be used to remove the material from the lift station wet 

well. 

a. In the event the amount of material is greater than the vactor truck capacity 

containers to store the material should be available …………………. 

 

4. In the event the spill is of a volume that cannot be contained by the lift station 

capacity, and/or in the event the material is of a nature that would cause harm 

to the WWTF and/or pass through the WWTF the material can be diverted to 

the Rollins Street CSO (Outfall #3) and/or the Seven Bridges Road CSO 

(Outfall #4) for the purpose of containment and cleanup. 

 

 

 

 

 

171

WS #5.



 17

Diversion procedures 

Diversion to the Seven Bridges Road CSO (west lagoon) can be accomplished 

by shutting down the pumps at the lift station. The pump control panel is located 

inside the building. Normally, only one pump is running at any given time. 

Observe which of the three pumps is running, then turn the auto/off/on switch to 

the off position.  

 

To divert the flow to the Rollins Street CSO (east lagoon) the gate will need to be 

closed. Inside the building, next to the north window, is the control panel. Turn 

the on/off switch to the off position, and then push the down button until the gate 

closes. In the event the key to the building is not available, the gate, which is 

located directly north of the old east plant building, can also be closed manually. 

Push the lever on the back of the motor to the hand position and crank the 

handle. This may take a large number of turns due to the gear ratio. The gate is 

visible from the top of the structure. The lagoon return valve, located along the 

east fence line must also be closed. It is a left hand valve. 

Notes:  

The decision to divert the flow to either of the lagoons will be dependent on: 

a. The current water level in the lagoon/s, 

b. If rain is eminent or already falling, 

c. Amount of snow melt expected, 

d. The estimated amount of flow that will be diverted. 

5. In the event the estimated flow is too great to be diverted to the lagoons and 

must be allowed to flow to the WWTF and/or in the event the flow has already 

reached the WWTF the following modes of operation are available: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

172

WS #5.



 18

A. The WWTF can be operated in a mock storm mode.  

Observe which of the two SBR basins has the lowest level. This SBR will be 

used to collect the pollutants and will be referred to as “the collection basin”.. 

Operational controls for “the collection basin”. 

 Ensure the collection basin sludge pump control button is in the off position 

on the PLC control panel.  

 Ensure the collection basin decant valves are closed and in the off position on 

the PLC control panel.  

 If not already, open the influent valve to the collection basin and leave in the 

manual position 

1. The remaining SBR will be referred to as “the idle basin”. 

Operational controls for “the idle basin”. 

 Close the influent valve to the idle basin and turn to the off position on the 

PLC control panel.  

 Turn off any blowers that may be running in the idle basin.  

 Close any blower valves that may be open in the idle basin. 

Immediately begin making storage space available. 

 Observe which of the two digesters has the lowest level.  

 Start pumping sludge from that digester to the sludge holding basin. 

 *Start the sludge pump in the idle basin and pump sludge to the digester that 

is emptying into the sludge holding basin. This will lower the level in the idle 

basin while the collection basin accepts the pollutants.  

 Open the gate valve fully, at the post equalization basin, in order to release 

the maximum amount possible. 

 Observe the settleability in the idle basin. As soon as possible open the 

decant valve to lower the level in the idle basin. Observe the discharge. Allow 

the idle basin to discharge as long as the effluent is of a good quality. 

 

 

173

WS #5.



 19

The Hazmat Team should have the field test equipment needed to monitor the 

influent. When it is determined that all the pollutants have been collected, “the 

idle basin” can begin filling. The idle basin will be used on a pass through basis. 

 Open the influent valve on the idle basin. 

 Continue pumping sludge from this basin to maintain as much capacity as 

possible. 

 Close the influent valve to the collection basin. 

 Close one of the decant valves in the idle basin. This will provide equalization 

between the incoming and out going flows. In the event it is raining, or has 

recently rained, both decant valves will need to be left open. 

 Adjust the post equalization basin gate valve to a nearly closed position. This 

will allow for maximum settling and retention of any solids that are carried 

over to the post equalization basin. Monitor the post eq basin for capacity and 

adjust as necessary to prevent overflow. 

 

In the event the spill is on the east side of town and will not at any time reach the 

Seven Bridges Road CSO (west lagoon), the pumps at the west lagoon can be 

turned off.  

This can be done without regard to the level of the lagoon for the following 

reason: 

a. This is a MoDNR permitted discharge point, 

b. The discharge from this lagoon receives primary treatment. 

c. The discharge from this lagoon is consistently under the MoDNR mandated 

limits. 

d. The diversion of this flow will greatly increase the storage capacity of the 

WWTF. 

 

 

 

 

 

174

WS #5.



 20

Note: In the event partially treated and/or untreated sewage must be released to 

a City of Moberly MoDNR permitted receiving stream in order to contain a 

potentially more hazardous substance a press release will be provided to the 

local radio stations (Attachment C). This announcement will contain the following 

information: 

Date of discharge, 

Time discharge was initiated, 

Duration of the discharge,  

Approximate amount of discharge, 

Receiving stream,  

Location along the receiving stream where the discharge enters the stream, 

What type of treatment the discharge has received, 

Potential hazards related to the discharge. 

 

In the event a toxic/hazardous spill reaches the storm drain system: 

Questions of importance: 

1. What waterway will receive the spill? 

a. Where along the waterway will the spill enter? 

2. What is the approximate volume of the spill? 

3. Is the source of the spill known? 

c. If yes, request all MSDSs related to the material.  

d. If no, request the aid of the Hazmat Crew via the Moberly Fire Department. 

(Response time will be at least 1 hour.) 

4. What field test equipment is available for immediate use? 

c. pH meter for acidic or base conditions, 

d. gas detector for flammability, 

(What field test equipment is available from the MFD?) 

5. What is the volume of flow already present in the stream?  

a. Has there been a recent substantial rain? 

b. Is it currently raining or is rain eminent?  

c. Heavy snow melt in progress? 

175

WS #5.



 21

All local waterways that receive discharges from the stormwater drainage system 

shall be designated on the system map. The earliest point of entry of the system 

into these waterways shall also be designated, along with all accessible points on 

the waterways. 

Earth moving equipment and/or operators for the purpose of building dams 

and/or other containment structures such as sump ponds, are available locally. 

1. Street barn, 

a. End loader 

b. Dump trucks 

c. Bull dozer 

d. Equipment operators 

 

2. Distribution and Collection, 

a. backhoe (2) 

b. dump truck 

c. equipment operators 

 

Note: 

Additional operators available through other departments: 

Wastewater: 

Parks:  

Water: 

Fire Department, 

a. Coordination center for additional equipment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

176

WS #5.



 22

Note: In the event that a chemical spill has reached any receiving stream 

permitted by the City of Moberly through MoDNR, a press release will be 

provided to the local radio stations. The announcement will contain the following: 

(Attachment D) 

Date of spill, 

Time of spill, 

Receiving stream, 

Location where it will enter the receiving stream., 

Approximate amount of spill, 

Type of chemical involved, 

Hazards involved to humans, wildlife and/or the environment, 

 

5. Clean-up 

Any and all expenses incurred for the clean up of the spill, and/or equipment 

used in the clean-up process will be paid for by the person/s, industry or entity 

that perpetrated the spill. (City of Moberly, Stormwater ordinance _________ ) 

Note: 

A legal trend occurring is cost recovery litigation. If litigation can demonstrate that 

tactics used by the emergency responders resulted in increased costs, the 

difference between the actual cost and the costs assessed against the spiller can 

be transferred to the emergency responder agency. 

Emergency responders are no longer exempt and protected from legal action 

when it can be shown that the negative outcome resulting from their actions can 

be defined as contributory negligence. 

 

Analytical Laboratory 

Engineering Surveys and Services 

1113 Faye St 

Columbia, MO 65201 

573.449.2646 

 

177

WS #5.



 23

Regulatory Authority 

Stormwater-Illicit discharge ordinance 

 

Follow-up activities 

After the field situation is stabilized and the immediate danger is under control an 

Illicit Discharge Report Form (see attachment B) is to be completed by the 

person in charge of the response team. 

Note: 

The Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA) developed and enforced 

by EPA clearly states that, after an emergency ends and the recovery and clean 

up process begins, emergency responders are no longer exempt from 

compliance with the requirements of RCRA. 

 

In the event the spill has reached the sewer system or entered the 

stormwater drainage system and the source of the spill is unknown. 

a. Start working upstream of the last known location of the material in the 

system, 

b. Collect grab samples at each location, and mark each with time and location 

c. Record the pH, 

d. Observe and record physical characteristics such as color, odor, amount of 

flow, 

e. Use collection system maps to determine possible flow routes and sources, 

f. If flow stops before it can be traced back to its source, identify which 

industries could be the source of the material. 

g. The samples shall be taken to the laboratory for analysis. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

178

WS #5.



 24

Procedures for testing and updating the plan 

Testing: 

Testing of the Emergency Response Plan shall take place at a minimum of twice 

per year. This testing may involve tabletop exercises, chemical tracing activities 

in the sewer system, and/or mock emergency response drills. All persons 

involved in the practices shall submit a brief written report on their part in the 

exercise with emphasis on: 

 What part of the plan worked well,  

 What did not work and why, 

 What improvements in the plan are needed, 

 How these improvements will fit into the plan. 

All reports shall be turned in to the Director of Public Utilities within five (5) 

working days of the exercise. 

In the event the Emergency Response Plan must be activated all City of Moberly 

personnel involved in the emergency shall submit a brief written report with 

emphasis on: 

 What part of the plan worked well,  

 What did not work and why, 

 What improvements in the plan are needed, 

 How these improvements will fit into the plan. 

All reports shall be turned in to the Director of Public Utilities within five (5) 

working days after the emergency is abated. 

Updating: 

 Twice yearly (June, December?) all personnel names, addresses, phone 

numbers, etc shall be reviewed and updated as necessary.  

 Industry contact phone numbers and addresses shall be reviewed and 

updated as necessary. 

 . Tier 11 reports shall be updated as necessary. 

The task of updating the plan shall be completed by_____________ and verified 

as completed by _________ . 

Copies of the updates shall be delivered to all persons on the distribution list. 

179

WS #5.



Attachment A 
 
 

Message Form 
Illicit Discharge/Spill Response Plan 

Communications Center 
 
 
 
Date: _____________ 
Time: _____________ 
To: __________________________________________________ 
From: ________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Message: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Message received by: ___________________________________________________ 
Message relayed by: __________________________________________________ 
Time relayed: ______________________________ 
 
 
 
Notes: 

180

WS #5.



Attachment B 
Illicit Discharge Report Form 

 
Date _________________ Time _________________ 
Incident location ______________________________________________________ 
 
Responsible party:           Unknown: ___________ 
Name: _______________________________________________               Phone: ____________ 
Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
Business/Industry type: ___________________________________________________ 
 
Reported by:             Unknown ________ 
Name: ______________________________________             Phone: _____________ 
Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
 
Reported to: 
Name/Title: ___________________________________________________________ 
Date: ___________________ Time: ___________________ 
 
Incident description: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
First responder on the scene: ________________________________________________ 
Departments on the scene: 
Police ___________  Fire _____________  D & C ___________  Street _____________ 
Other __________________________________________________________________ 
 
Material description: 
Flammable___________  Reactive __________ Toxic _____________ 
Corrosive ____________ Biological ________  Unknown __________ 
Other ____________________________________________________________ 
Material identified by:  
Hauler ___  Industry/Business ___  Container label ___  Hazmat ___  Laboratory ___  
 
Corrective action taken: ____________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 

181

WS #5.



Attachment C  
 
Press Release 
Sewage Release 
 
In order to contain a potentially toxic chemical spill the City of Moberly Waste Water 
Treatment Facility is forced to discharge waste water to _________________________  .  
                                                                                               (Receiving stream) 
The discharge will enter the stream in the vicinity of _____________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ . 
 
The release will occur on ___________, and begin at approximately _____  (AM, PM).   
                                             (Date)                                                      (Time) 
 
The duration of the discharge will be approximately _______________ with a total  
                                                                                         (Length of time) 
 
volume of _______________ gallons.  
                     (Amount) 
 
The wastewater discharged has received ______________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________.. 
                           (Type of treatment discharge has received) 
 
 
The potential hazards associated with this type of discharge are ____________________ 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
The City of Moberly strongly advises area residents avoid contact with the waters in this 
stream until further notice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                      Signature/Title 
 
 
 
 

182

WS #5.



Attachment D  
 
Press Release 
Chemical Spill 
 
Due to a (an) ___________________________________________________________ 
                             (Type of accident that has occurred) 
 
the chemical ____________________ has the potential to enter __________________ . 
                      (Chemical name)                                                        (Name of stream) 
 
The _________________ may enter the  
           (Chemical name) 
 
stream in the vicinity of ___________________________________________________ 
                                                 (Approximate location of entry) 
 
The spill occurred on ___________,  
                                       (Date)  
 
and may enter ______________________ at approximately ________  (AM, PM). 
                          (Name of creek)                                               (Time) 
 
The duration of the chemical release will be approximately ____________ with a total  
                                                                                              (Length of time) 
volume of _______________ gallons.  
                     (Amount) 
 
The chemical release has received ______________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________.. 
                           (Type of treatment, if any the chemical has received) 
 
The potential hazards associated with this type of chemical are ____________________ 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
The City of Moberly strongly advises area residents avoid contact with the waters in this 
stream until further notice. 
 
 
________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                      Signature/Title 
 
 
 

183

WS #5.



Attachment E 

 
Local Industry Contacts 

 Central State Enterprises of Missouri 1251 CR1317 

o Alex Watson, Plant manager 

o Cell 660 372-8190 

 Wilson trailer Sales 1600 Rt. DD 

o Chris Mathis, Safety Officer 

o 660 263-2070 

 Lakeview Biodiesel 607 W. Fowler Rd. 

o Joe Youse, Plant Manager 

o Office 660 263-7273 

o Cell 660 651-9013 

 Total Power Coat & Finish PO Box 746, 715 Sturgeon St. 

o Josh Taylor 

o 660 263-7444 

 Orscheln Product LLC 1177 N. Morley St. 

o Tom Hall, EH&S Manager 

o 660 269-3564 

o Cell 660 651-2749 

 Dura Automotive Systems 1855 Robertson Rd. 

o Mark Barron, Plant Engineer 

o 660 269-2325 

 (New) MacRak Inc. 100 Sparks Ave 

o Shawn MacDonald, President 

o Office 815 723-7400 

o Cell 815 557-5643 

184

WS #5.



 

 

Attachment E 

MS4 Outfall Report and Map 

 
 

 

  

185

WS #5.



 

 

1001 Diamond Ridge, Suite 1100 
Jefferson City, MO 65109 
573.638.5000 
www.barr.com 
 
 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) 
Outfalls Review and Recommendations 

Prepared for 
City of Moberly, Missouri 

July 2018 

186

WS #5.



 

 
\\barr.com\projects\Jeff City\25 MO\79\25791011 NPDES and Source Water Protect\WorkFiles\Task 1A - SWMP Review\DRAFT SWMP\SWMP 
Attachments\Attach E_Outfall Report and Map\7.17.18 MS4 Outfall Review_Report_Revised Names.docx 
 i  

 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Outfalls Review and 
Recommendations 

July 2018 

Contents 
1.0 Background ............................................................................................................................................................................ 1 

2.0 Desktop Review of Outfalls .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

3.0 Field Survey of Outfalls ...................................................................................................................................................... 4 

3.1 Existing Outfall #1 .......................................................................................................................................................... 4 

3.2 Existing Outfall #2 .......................................................................................................................................................... 5 

3.3 Existing Outfall #3 .......................................................................................................................................................... 8 

3.4 Existing Outfall #4 ........................................................................................................................................................10 

3.5 Existing Outfall #5 ........................................................................................................................................................12 

3.6 Existing Outfall #6 ........................................................................................................................................................15 

3.7 Existing Outfall #7 ........................................................................................................................................................17 

3.8 Existing Outfall #8 ........................................................................................................................................................19 

4.0 Conclusions ..........................................................................................................................................................................21 

 

 

  

187

WS #5.



 

 

 
 ii  

 

List of Tables 

Table 1 Barr’s Recommendations for Outfalls to be Removed, Replaced, and Added ........................ 21 
Table 2 New and Recommended Outfalls and Location Data ....................................................................... 21 
 

List of Photographs 

Photo 3.1.1 Existing Outfall #1 Facing Northeast ........................................................................................................... 5 
Photo 3.2.1 Existing Outfall #2 Facing North ................................................................................................................... 6 
Photo 3.2.2 Outfalls #2 and #3 Showing Unnamed Tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River Facing West ...... 7 
Photo 3.2.3 Outfall #2 as it Enters the Unnamed Tributary Facing West/Southwest ....................................... 7 
Photo 3.3.1 Existing Outfall #3 Facing Southeast ........................................................................................................... 8 
Photo 3.3.2 Outfalls #4 and #5 Facing Southwest ......................................................................................................... 9 
Photo 3.3.3 Outfall #4 Facing South .................................................................................................................................... 9 
Photo 3.3.4 Upstream City Stormwater Ditch from Outfall #5 Facing North ................................................... 10 
Photo 3.4.1 Outfall #6 Facing South/Southeast ........................................................................................................... 11 
Photo 3.4.2 Outfall #7 Facing East ..................................................................................................................................... 11 
Photo 3.5.1 Existing Outfall #5 Facing East/Southeast .............................................................................................. 12 
Photo 3.6.1 Outfall #12 Facing South .............................................................................................................................. 15 
Photo 3.6.2 Outfall #13 East/Northeast ........................................................................................................................... 16 
Photo 3.6.3 Outfall #14 Facing South/Southeast ........................................................................................................ 16 
Photo 3.6.4 Outfall #15 Facing Northwest ..................................................................................................................... 17 
Photo 3.7.1 Existing Outfall #7 Facing East .................................................................................................................... 18 
Photo 3.7.2 Existing Outfall #7 Facing Southeast ........................................................................................................ 18 
Photo 3.7.3 Immediately Downstream of Existing Outfall #7 Facing West/Northwest ................................ 19 
Photo 3.8.1 Estimated Existing Outfall #8 Facing Southeast .................................................................................. 20 
Photo 3.8.2 Outfall #19 Facing Southwest ..................................................................................................................... 20 
 

  

188

WS #5.



 

 

 
 iii  

 

Certifications 

I hereby certify that this report was prepared by me or under my direct supervision and that I am a duly 
licensed Professional Engineer under the laws of the State of Missouri. 
 
 

  July 7, 2018 
Andrea D. Collier 
PE #: 2007020252 

  

 

 

189

WS #5.



 

 

 
 1  

 

1.0 Background 
This report outlines activities conducted by Barr Engineering Co. (Barr) regarding the review of the City of 
Moberly’s (City’s) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) Program and Stormwater Management 
Plan (SWMP), and includes a report on the desktop review and field survey of the City’s MS4 outfalls.  

As part of a review of the City’s MS4 Program, Barr conducted a review of the City’s MS4 outfall locations. 
This review included an evaluation of MS4 outfall regulatory requirements, definitions, and Missouri 
Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) guidance; a desktop review of outfall maps; and a field survey 
of existing, revised, and proposed outfall locations. 

This review was conducted to align the City’s MS4 outfall map with the City’s SWMP and, as part of the 
SWMP, as a requirement of the Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program. The City’s MS4 
Missouri State Operating Permit (MSOP), MO-R040030, Section 4.2.3.1.1., regarding the implementation 
of the Illicit Discharge Detection and Elimination Program states that, at a minimum, the City shall provide:  

“A storm sewer map showing the location of all constructed outfalls and the names and 
locations of all of the receiving waters of the state that receive discharges from those 
outfalls. The permittee shall describe the sources of information used for the map(s), and 
how the permittee plans to verify the outfall locations with field surveys. If already 
completed, the permittee shall describe how the map was developed and how the map will 
be regularly updated. The permittee shall make the information available to the 
Department upon request.” 

The resulting new outfall map was produced in accordance with these requirements to be included as part 
of the City’s SWMP. 

An initial review of the City’s current hardcopy of the MS4 outfall map revealed that all eight outfalls are 
located at the municipal boundary and in the bed of existing intermittent streams. In preparation for a 
more detailed review, Barr conducted an evaluation of regulatory requirements to ensure that the outfall 
locations that are selected meet the definitions, as provided in the rule, and that the revised outfall map 
as part of the City’s MS4 SWMP meets the City’s MS4 MSOP requirements, as stated above. 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer, as defined by 10 CSR 20-6.200 (1)(C)16., is:  

“…a conveyance or system of conveyances including roads and highways with drainage 
systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, paved or unpaved channels, 
or storm drains designated and utilized for routing of stormwater which— 

A. Does not include any waters of the state as defined in this rule; 
B. Is contained within the municipal corporate limits or is owned and operated by the 

state, city, town, village, county, district, association, or other public body created by 
or pursuant to the laws of Missouri having jurisdiction over disposal of sewage, 
industrial waste, stormwater, or other liquid wastes; 

190

WS #5.



 

 

 
 2  

 

C. Is not part or portion of a combined sewer system;  
D. Is not part of a publicly owned treatment works as defined in 40 CFR 122.2.” 

An MS4 outfall, as defined by 10 CSR 20-6.200(1)(C)18., states that it is:  

“A point source as defined by 10 CSR 20-2.010 at the point where a municipal separate 
storm sewer discharges and does not include open conveyances connecting two municipal 
separate storm sewers, pipes, tunnels, or other conveyances which connect segments of 
waters of the state and are used to convey waters of the state.” 

MDNR’s MS4 coordinator provided the following additional explanation of these definitions as guidance. 
The MS4 outfall is where stormwater from the regulated MS4 discharges or has the potential to discharge 
to waters of the state. The potential for discharging stormwater to waters of the state is at locations where 
the storm sewer leaves the jurisdiction of the regulated MS4, but flows to waters of the state. The location 
where it leaves the jurisdiction is the outfall. If the MS4 discharges to a combined sewer, then it is not 
classified as a MS4 but as a combined sewer. An MS4 outfall cannot be part of or located in waters of the 
state, but instead should be a representative point within or at the boundary of the City’s jurisdiction 
where the MS4 discharges to waters of the state. The definition of MS4 outfall excludes non-point source 
discharges or sheet flow. The location of a MS4 outfall is not typically located at the municipal boundary, 
unless the municipal boundary is the point at which the MS4 discharges or has the potential to discharge 
to waters of the state. 

Because of the current regulatory definitions of MS4 and MS4 outfall and MDNR guidance, Barr 
recommends that all existing outfall locations be revised. The desktop review and field survey of the 
outfalls were conducted to determine where revisions to existing outfall locations could be made and to 
locate additional outfalls. The recommended revised and proposed new MS4 outfalls were identified in 
accordance with the above regulations, the MSOP and MDNR guidance, as described below. 

  

191

WS #5.



 

 

 
 3  

 

2.0 Desktop Review of Outfalls 
The City provided a hardcopy map that included approximate locations for the eight existing MS4 outfalls. 
This map was recreated in ArcGIS and included the eight existing outfalls, the four combined sewer 
overflow (CSO) outfalls, light detection and ranging (LiDAR) aerial photography, 10-foot topographic 
contours, national hydrography dataset (NHD) flowlines, surface water impoundments, and the municipal 
boundaries. Using the LiDAR data, the NHD, and topographic contours, each existing outfall was 
examined and, as determined to be necessary, revisions to these outfall locations and potential additional 
outfalls were marked on a map. All of these outfall locations were included on a revised map that was 
used to conduct the field survey of the outfalls. The results are described below. 

  

192

WS #5.



 

 

 
 4  

 

3.0 Field Survey of Outfalls 
After completion of the desktop review of the outfalls, on Friday, June 30, 2017, the Barr team conducted 
the field survey to confirm outfall locations and to identify if any outfalls needed to be relocated or 
removed. The City had received a combined 3.57 inches of precipitation the morning of the field survey 
and the day before (June 29 and 30), which was based on rainfall data from a National Oceanic and 
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) station in Moberly, Missouri. The Barr team arrived to conduct the 
fieldwork just after 7:00 a.m. The weather was cloudy and intermittently raining; the rain ceased around 
9:00 a.m. The recent rain event resulted in ideal conditions to conduct a field assessment of stormwater 
outfalls, because the outfalls were currently discharging and stormwater flow paths were easily observed. 
A secondary field survey event was performed by Aaron Grimm to reassess an appropriate location for 
Existing Outfall #3 on Tuesday, July 18, 2017. The field surveys were conducted using maps and a Trimble 
GPS unit to collect additional outfall location data and to collect locations of revised or new outfalls. As a 
result of the field survey and outfall review, a revised MS4 outfall map showing the existing and proposed 
outfalls was created and is included as Figure 1. Figure 2 shows only the proposed outfalls and the CSOs.  

Existing outfalls are named “Existing Outfall #X” where X represents the number of the outfall. Existing 
outfalls were numbered in numerical order starting at the northernmost existing outfall and moving 
around the municipal boundary clockwise until Existing Outfall #8. Proposed (new and revised) outfalls are 
named “Outfall #X” in numerical order starting at the northernmost proposed outfall and moving around 
the municipal boundary clockwise, through Outfall #19. The locations of the existing and proposed 
outfalls can be seen in Figure 1, as well as tabulated in Table 2. The final map of proposed outfalls and 
CSOs is presented in Figure 2.   

3.1 Existing Outfall #1 
Existing Outfall #1 was identified in the field and a sign was present marking the location. This outfall fell 
on the edge of the City’s municipal boundary just on the east side of U.S. Highway 63 (Hwy 63) and was in 
the bed of the existing intermittent stream (unnamed tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River). Existing 
Outfall #1 can be seen below in Photo 3.1.1. 

193

WS #5.



 

 

 
 5  

 

 
Photo 3.1.1 Existing Outfall #1 Facing Northeast 

The Barr team explored the area upstream and to the west of Hwy 63 and identified a potential 
replacement for Existing Outfall #1. The recommended revised outfall location can be seen on Figure 1. 

The location of Existing Outfall #1 is within a water of the state as identified by a NHD flowline, which 
does not align with the regulatory definition or MDNR guidance for an MS4 outfall. It is recommended to 
remove Existing Outfall #1 and to replace it with Outfall #1 in order to provide a more representative 
stormwater outfall location from the City of Moberly before it enters into a water of the state.  

3.2 Existing Outfall #2 
Existing Outfall #2 was identified using the map from the City of Moberly and field observations. A sign 
marking the outfall location was not found. Existing Outfall #2 was estimated to be located where a water 
of the state (unnamed tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River), as identified by an NHD flowline, crosses 
County Road B130/2305 to the east of Hwy 63. The upstream culvert of the road crossing at Existing 
Outfall #2 can be seen below in Photo 3.2.1. 

194

WS #5.



 

 

 
 6  

 

 
Photo 3.2.1 Existing Outfall #2 Facing North 

Existing Outfall #2 location is within a water of the state and not within a conveyance that is in the City’s 
jurisdiction, which does not comply with MDNR rules and guidance for MS4 outfalls. New potential outfall 
locations were identified and surveyed in the field. Outfalls #2 and #3 identify where City stormwater 
drainage conveyances enter into the same water of the state (unnamed tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River) 
and are upstream of Existing Outfall #2. Outfall #2 is the City stormwater ditch entering the southern side 
of the unnamed tributary, and Outfall #3 is the stormwater ditch entering the northern side of the 
unnamed tributary.   

It is recommended to remove Existing Outfall #2 and to replace it with Outfalls #2 and #3. Outfalls #2 and 
#3 can be seen in Photo 3.2.2 below. Outfall #2 is on the left side of the photo (south) just before the 
stormwater ditch joins the unnamed tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River. Outfall #3 is on the right side of 
the photo (north) just before the stormwater ditch joins the unnamed tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River. 
Photo 3.2.3 shows only Outfall #2 as it enters the unnamed tributary. In Photo 3.2.3, the City stormwater 
ditch enters the unnamed tributary from the left side of the photo. 

195

WS #5.



 

 

 
 7  

 

 
Photo 3.2.2 Outfalls #2 and #3 Showing Unnamed Tributary to the Elk Fork Salt River Facing 

West 

 
Photo 3.2.3 Outfall #2 as it Enters the Unnamed Tributary Facing West/Southwest 

  

196

WS #5.



 

 

 
 8  

 

3.3 Existing Outfall #3 
Existing Outfall #3 was identified while in the field. A sign marking the outfall location was present. The 
outfall is just east of Hwy 63 at the municipal boundary and is located within a water of the state 
(unnamed tributary to Coon Creek), which does not comply with MDNR rules and guidance for MS4 
outfalls. Potential outfall replacements were identified in the field. Outfalls #4 and #5 are located just west 
of Hwy 63 and are in City stormwater ditches just before they discharge into the unnamed tributary. 
Outfall #4 is in the southern City stormwater ditch where it discharges into the unnamed tributary. Outfall 
#5 is in the northern City stormwater ditch where it discharges into the unnamed tributary. Existing Outfall 
#3 is shown in Photo 3.3.1 below. Photo 3.3.2 shows the area in which Outfalls #4 and #5 discharge into 
the unnamed tributary (Outfall #4 is on the left side and Outfall #5 is on the right). Photo 3.3.3 shows 
Outfall #4 where it discharges into the unnamed tributary, and Photo 3.3.4 is taken from the approximate 
location of Outfall #5 but is looking upstream of the City stormwater ditch.  

 
Photo 3.3.1 Existing Outfall #3 Facing Southeast 

197

WS #5.



 

 

 
 9  

 

 
Photo 3.3.2 Outfalls #4 and #5 Facing Southwest 

 
Photo 3.3.3 Outfall #4 Facing South 

198

WS #5.



 

 

 
 10  

 

 
Photo 3.3.4 Upstream City Stormwater Ditch from Outfall #5 Facing North 

3.4 Existing Outfall #4 
Existing Outfall #4 was determined to be very difficult and unsafe to access; therefore, it was not visited in 
the field. It is unknown whether a sign is posted marking the outfall location. From the desktop review of 
Existing Outfall #4 on the City’s map, it was estimated that this outfall is located in the bed of an unnamed 
tributary and is likely outside the City’s jurisdiction. Outfalls #6 and #7 were investigated as potential 
outfall replacements for Existing Outfall #4. 

Outfalls #6 and #7 were determined to be potential replacements for Existing Outfall #4. Outfall #7 is 
located upstream of Existing Outfall #4 and appeared to discharge into an unnamed tributary to Coon 
Creek. The CSO Outfall #003 is nearby to Outfall #7 and appears to drain into the same stream. In the 
case that this entire basin drains to the CSO, there would be no MS4 outfall in this area. The definition of 
MS4 outfall excludes all CSOs. Although it was nearby CSO #003, Outfall #7 was examined and is believed 
to be a separate stormwater outfall. Outfall #6 is located upstream of Existing Outfall #4. Outfall #6 is 
located in a City stormwater drainage conveyance just as it enters into a heavily wooded area prior to 
draining into the same unnamed tributary mentioned above. Both Outfalls #6 and #7 are believed to be 
outfalls that capture stormwater within the City’s municipal boundary and jurisdiction and are separate 
from CSO #003. It is recommended that Existing Outfall #4 be removed and replaced with the more 
representative and accessible location of Outfalls #6 and #7. Outfalls #6 and #7 are shown in Photos 3.4.1 
and 3.4.2 below. 

199

WS #5.



 

 

 
 11  

 

 
Photo 3.4.1 Outfall #6 Facing South/Southeast 

 
Photo 3.4.2 Outfall #7 Facing East 

  

200

WS #5.



 

 

 
 12  

 

3.5 Existing Outfall #5 
Existing Outfall #5 was located in the field and a sign marking the location of the outfall was present. The 
outfall was located just east of Hwy 63 in Coy Branch, which is a water of the state as identified by an NHD 
flowline. Photo 3.5.1 below shows Existing Outfall #5. 

 
Photo 3.5.1 Existing Outfall #5 Facing East/Southeast 

Possible outfall replacements and/or additional outfalls were identified at Outfalls #8, #9, #10, and #11. 

Outfall #8 is located on the downstream side of a City stormwater culvert that passes under Russhaven 
Drive (just south of the Russhaven Drive and East McKinsey Street intersection) as the stormwater ditch 
drains towards Coy Branch. Outfall #9 is located at the upstream end of the City stormwater culvert that 
passes under the Seventh-Day Adventist Church driveway off East Mckinsey Street as the stormwater ditch 
drains towards Coy Branch. Outfall #10 is located just upstream (to the west) of where Coy Branch begins 
and is just off the east side of South Morley Street (just north of Bob’s Butcher Shop). Outfall #10 is on the 
downstream side of a culvert that passes underneath South Morley Street. Outfall #11 is located at a City 
stormwater drainage culvert just west of Moberly Middle School and just before it passes under Kwix 
Road as it drains to Coy Branch. 

201

WS #5.



 

 

 
 13  

 

Existing Outfall #5 is located in Coy Branch, a water of the state; therefore, it is recommended to be 
removed and replaced with more representative Outfalls #8, #9, #10, and #11. Each outfall captures a 
different area of drainage within the drainage basin to Coy Branch. The suggested new outfalls can be 
seen in the Photos 3.5.2, 3.5.3, 3.5.4, and 3.5.5 below. 

 
Photo 3.5.2 Outfall #8 Facing Southeast 

 
Photo 3.5.3 Outfall #9 Facing Northwest 

 

202

WS #5.



 

 

 
 14  

 

 
Photo 3.5.4 Outfall #10 Facing East (downstream) 

 
Photo 3.5.5 Outfall #11 Facing South 

  

203

WS #5.



 

 

 
 15  

 

3.6 Existing Outfall #6 
The location of the sign for Existing Outfall #6 was not found while in the field. Existing Outfall #6 was 
estimated to be in the bed of an unnamed tributary to Coon Creek at the City’s municipal boundary, just 
east of Hwy 63. Because Existing Outfall #6 is located in waters of the state, this outfall is recommended 
to be replaced. Potential replacement and additional outfalls were identified at Outfalls #12, #13, #14, and 
#15.  

Outfall #12 is located in a stormwater ditch just on the east side of Hwy 63 as it drains towards an 
unnamed tributary of Coon Creek. Outfall #13 is in a stormwater conveyance just on the south side of East 
Urbandale Drive as it drains towards the same unnamed tributary. Outfall #14 is in a stormwater 
conveyance off the east side of the south end of Chrisman Lane in a residential area as it drains towards 
the same unnamed tributary. Outfall #15 is located in a stormwater conveyance off the east side of 
Thomas Street just before it turns into a private drive, also in a residential area, as it drains towards the 
same unnamed tributary.  

It is recommended that Existing Outfall #6 be removed and replaced with Outfalls #12, #13, #14, or #15. 
Even though Existing Outfall #6 was not clearly identified in the field, the area where it was marked on the 
City outfall map was along a NHD flowline and would therefore not be a representative MS4 outfall in 
accordance with MDNR rules and guidance. Outfalls #12, #13, #14, and #15 are shown in Photos 3.6.1, 
3.6.2, 3.6.3, and 3.6.4. 

 
Photo 3.6.1 Outfall #12 Facing South 

204

WS #5.



 

 

 
 16  

 

 
Photo 3.6.2 Outfall #13 East/Northeast 

 
Photo 3.6.3 Outfall #14 Facing South/Southeast 

205

WS #5.



 

 

 
 17  

 

 
Photo 3.6.4 Outfall #15 Facing Northwest 

3.7 Existing Outfall #7 
Existing Outfall #7 was located in the field (see Photos 3.7.1, 3.7.2, and 3.7.3) and had a sign marking the 
location. Existing Outfall #7 is located in the bed of an existing unnamed tributary (in waters of the state) 
and, as such, is not located in accordance with MDNR rules and guidance. The field team explored the 
lower area of this basin that was accessible from public roads. This existing outfall is located in a heavily 
wooded area with fewer public access areas and few roads and public stormwater conveyances. In 
addition, this area appears to drain to CSO #004, which discharges from a combined sewer impoundment. 
Replacement outfalls could not initially be identified, but after an additional survey of potential 
replacement outfalls, Outfalls #16, #17, and #18 were identified as replacement outfalls for Existing 
Outfall #7.  

206

WS #5.



 

 

 
 18  

 

 
Photo 3.7.1 Existing Outfall #7 Facing East 

 
Photo 3.7.2 Existing Outfall #7 Facing Southeast 

207

WS #5.



 

 

 
 19  

 

 
Photo 3.7.3 Immediately Downstream of Existing Outfall #7 Facing West/Northwest 

3.8 Existing Outfall #8 
The exact location of Existing Outfall #8 was not identifiable in the field due to its close proximity to an 
industrial facility and private property. The estimated location for Existing Outfall #8 is in the bed of an 
unnamed tributary to Sugar Creek and is in an NHD flowline. The field team searched for the outfall sign 
behind the industrial facility and was unable to locate it due to heavy woody vegetation and lack of access 
points to the unnamed tributary. The estimated location of Existing Outfall #8 is shown in Photo 3.8.1 
below. 

A potential replacement location was identified at Outfall #19, which was in a stormwater conveyance that 
discharged just north of an unnamed tributary to Sugar Creek that is shown as a NHD flowline. Outfall 
#19 is at the discharge point of a small stormwater pipe off the west side of Missouri State Highway DD 
(Hwy DD) and just north of where the unnamed tributary to Sugar Creek crosses under the Hwy DD and 
Huntsville Road intersection through a box culvert. 

It is recommended that Existing Outfall #8 be replaced with Outfall #19. Outfall #19 is shown in 
Photo 3.8.2 below. Photo 3.8.1 is taken from Outfall #19 and is looking downstream to where the 
stormwater ditch discharges into the unnamed tributary to Sugar Creek. Outfall #19 is at the discharge 
pool of the small pipe shown in the photo. 

208

WS #5.



 

 

 
 20  

 

 
Photo 3.8.1 Estimated Existing Outfall #8 Facing Southeast 

 
Photo 3.8.2 Outfall #19 Facing Southwest  

209

WS #5.



 

 

 
 21  

 

4.0 Conclusions 
Table 1 below outlines Barr’s recommendations for outfalls to be removed, replaced, and added. Table 2 
contains the nineteen (19) new or revised outfalls and their respective location data, as plotted in the 
Existing and Proposed Outfalls Map (Figure 1) and the Moberly MS4 Outfalls Map (Figure 2). The 
coordinate system used is NAD83 State Plane Missouri Central (in feet). 

Table 1 Barr’s Recommendations for Outfalls to be Removed, Replaced, and Added 

Outfalls to be Removed Replacement Outfalls/New Outfalls 
Existing Outfall #1 Outfall #1 
Existing Outfall #2 Outfalls #2, #3 
Existing Outfall #3 Outfalls #4, #5 
Existing Outfall #4 Outfalls #6, #7 
Existing Outfall #5 Outfalls #8, #9, #10, #11 
Existing Outfall #6 Outfalls #12, #13, #14, #15 
Existing Outfall #7 Outfalls #16, #17, #18 
Existing Outfall #8 Outfall #19 

  

Table 2 New and Recommended Outfalls and Location Data 

Outfall Latitude Longitude Northing Easting 
Outfall #1 39.4438919100 -92.4356272600 1314663.51800 1658595.76200 
Outfall #2 39.4349428027 -92.4187611349 1311407.86000 1663361.75400 
Outfall #3 39.4347522118 -92.4186753925 1311338.46400 1663386.03300 
Outfall #4 39.4275576337 -92.4138551980 1308719.27434 1664749.95433 
Outfall #5 39.4274803181 -92.4138157183 1308691.12463 1664761.13304 
Outfall #6 39.4198616297 -92.4188547619 1305914.88300 1663340.25000 
Outfall #7 39.4193398413 -92.4162672727 1305725.50200 1664071.39400 
Outfall #8 39.4087674705 -92.4303522776 1301871.39800 1660095.31300 
Outfall #9 39.4084300844 -92.4211034938 1301750.66400 1662708.62200 
Outfall #10 39.4047116099 -92.4340243932 1300393.37500 1659058.85300 
Outfall #11 39.4018162559 -92.4265951112 1299340.43700 1661158.94200 
Outfall #12 39.3887017097 -92.4127273553 1294567.29400 1665082.22100 
Outfall #13 39.3940471351 -92.4203849338 1296512.22400 1662916.27000 
Outfall #14 39.3934263806 -92.4254498918 1296284.90800 1661485.07500 
Outfall #15 39.3930886900 -92.4283153100 1296161.25800 1660675.38400 
Outfall #16 39.4027355400 -92.4521996200 1299670.40500 1653923.60900 
Outfall #17 39.4109356000 -92.4443177100 1302658.34500 1656148.95600 
Outfall #18 39.4205053800 -92.4747562900 1306140.04300 1647547.96500 
Outfall #19 39.4349030643 -92.4519731598 1311386.66500 1653981.36400 

The coordinate system used is NAD83 State Plane Missouri Central (in feet). 

210

WS #5.



 

 

Figures 

211

WS #5.



#0

#0

#0

#0

!H

!H!H

!H!H

!H !H

!H !H

!H

!H

!H

!H
!H!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

Outfall 1

Outfall 2
Outfall 3

Outfall 4Outfall 5

Outfall 6
Outfall 7

Outfall 8 Outfall 9

Outfall 10

Outfall 11

Outfall 12

Outfall 13Outfall 14
Outfall 15

Outfall 16

Outfall 17

Outfall 18

Outfall 19

Outfall #002 -
Taylor Street CSO

Outfall #003 -
Rollins Street CSO

Outfall #004 -
Seven Bridges Road CSO

Outfall #005 -
Holman Road CSO

Moberly

Co
on

Cr
e ek

Elk
For

k S
alt

Riv
er

Coy Branch

S ugar Cree
k

Sweet Spring Creek

900

750

800

850

Existing Outfall 1

Existing Outfall 2

Existing Outfall 3

Existing Outfall 5

Existing Outfall 8

Existing Outfall 7

Existing Outfall 4

Existing Outfall 6

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.6, 2018-07-14 21:16 File: I:\Projects\25\79\1011\Maps\Reports\NPDES_Source_Water_Protect\2018\Figure01 Existing and Proposed Outfalls.mxd User: MRQ

EXISTING AND
PROPOSED OUTFALLS

City of Moberly
Moberly, MO

FIGURE 1
0 3,250

Feet

!;N
!H Existing Outfall Location
!H Proposed Outfall Location

#0
Combined Sewer Overflow
Locations (Approximate)

National Hydrography Dataset
(NHD) Flowline
Municipal Boundary

Surface Elevation Contours
50 foot
10 foot

212

WS #5.



#0

#0

#0

#0

!H

!H!H

!H!H

!H !H

!H !H

!H

!H

!H

!H
!H!H

!H

!H

!H

!H

Outfall 1

Outfall 2
Outfall 3

Outfall 4Outfall 5

Outfall 6
Outfall 7

Outfall 8 Outfall 9

Outfall 10

Outfall 11

Outfall 12

Outfall 13Outfall 14
Outfall 15

Outfall 16

Outfall 17

Outfall 18

Outfall 19

Outfall #002 -
Taylor Street CSO

Outfall #003 -
Rollins Street CSO

Outfall #004 -
Seven Bridges Road CSO

Outfall #005 -
Holman Road CSO

Moberly

Co
on

Cr
e ek

Elk
For

k S
alt

Riv
er

Coy Branch

S ugar Cree
k

Sweet Spring Creek

900

750

800

850

 Source: Esri, DigitalGlobe, GeoEye, Earthstar Geographics, CNES/Airbus DS, USDA, USGS, AeroGRID,
IGN, and the GIS User Community

Barr Footer: ArcGIS 10.6, 2018-07-15 12:36 File: I:\Projects\25\79\1011\Maps\Reports\NPDES_Source_Water_Protect\2018\Figure02 MS4 Moberly Outfalls.mxd User: MRQ

MOBERLY MS4 OUTFALLS
City of Moberly
Moberly, MO

FIGURE 2
0 3,250

Feet

!;N
!H Proposed Outfall Location

#0
Combined Sewer Overflow
Locations (Approximate)
National Hydrography Dataset
(NHD) Flowline

Municipal Boundary
Surface Elevation Contours

50 foot
10 foot

213

WS #5.



 

 

Attachment F 

Missouri DNR MS4 Reporting Form MO 780-1846 

 

214

WS #5.



 

 

MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES  
WATER PROTECTION PROGRAM  
MUNICIPAL SEPARATE STORM SEWER SYSTEM (MS4) 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN REPORT 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
PROJECT ID NUMBER  
 
DATE RECEIVED  
 

Part A – MS4 PERMIT HOLDER INFORMATION 
1. MS4 NAME 
 

2. NPDES PERMIT NUMBER 
 
 

3. MS4 UNIQUE ID NO. 

4. ADDRESS 
 
 

5. CITY                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         6. STATE 7. ZIP CODE 

8. TELEPHONE NUMBER WITH AREA CODE  
  
 

9. EMAIL 

10. NAME OF MS4 CONTACT PERSON 
 
 
11.  Have any areas of the MS4 been added or removed from the MS4 jurisdiction due to annexation or other legal means since the 
most recent permit application (renewal, new, modification), or most recent MS4 stormwater management plan report?   
 

 Yes    No   
If yes, please include a map along with a brief description as an attachment.   
 
Part B – REPORTING PERIOD 

1.  Is your MS4 subject to a TMDL?   
 Yes    No   

 
If yes, you are required to submit the MS4 report annually.  Reports are due Feb. 28 each year.  For the first reporting period, the 
beginning date will be June 13, 2016, and the ending date will be Dec. 31, 2016.  All other annual reports shall cover the reporting 
period of Jan. 1 to Dec. 31 each year.  

2.  Is your MS4 new permitted (i.e., is this your first MS4 permit)? 
 Yes    No   

 
If yes, you are required to submit the MS4 stormwater management plan report annually.  Reports are due Feb. 28 each year.  For the 
first reporting period, the beginning date will be the date of issuance of the permit and the ending date will be Dec. 31, 2016.  All other 
annual reports shall cover the reporting period of Jan. 1 to Dec. 31 each year.   
 

3.  Is your MS4 a previously permitted MS4 and not subject to a TMDL?   
 Yes    No   

 
If yes, you are required to submit the MS4 stormwater management plan report biennially (i.e., once every two years).  Reports are 
due Feb. 28 every odd year.  The first report will be due February 2017, and will cover the reporting period from June 13, 2016, to 
Dec. 31, 2016.  All other reports shall cover the reporting period of Jan. 1 of the first year to Dec. 31 of the second year. 
    
4.  If you are part of a co-permitted MS4 permit, submit combined MS4 stormwater management plan reports, and one or more of the 
co-permitted MS4s have annual reporting based on the above criteria, then submit your MS4 stormwater management plan report 
annually by Feb. 28 of each year.    
 
IF you are part of a co-permitted MS4 permit and do not submit combined MS4 stormwater management plan report, then each MS4 
co-permittee will submit their MS4 stormwater management plan report based on the above criteria.     
 
5.  Reporting Period:   
 
BEGINNING:                                                                                             ENDING: 
 
MO 780-1846 (10-16)   

 
 
 
 
 

215

WS #5.



Part C – STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN REPORT PROGRESS AND COMPLIANCE 
As an attachment, please provide information for each of the items below.  Provide informative data, success stories, and experiences 
that support the successful implementation of your stormwater management plan report.  
1. Describe the status of compliance with permit conditions for the permitted MS4.   

2. Provide information regarding the progress toward achieving the statutory goal of reducing the discharge of pollutants to the 
maximum extent practicable to the MS4.     

3. If another governmental entity implements any best management practice or minimum control measure, please provide the 
following:   

a. Name of the government entity;  
b. Name of the primary contact for the government entity;  
c. Contact information (i.e., address, city, ZIP code, state, and phone number); and  
d. Specific best management practices or minimum control measures being implemented by the government entity.   

It is the responsibility of the permittee to provide all information under this report regardless if best management practices or minimum 
control measures are being implemented by another governmental entity.  If a complete minimum control measure is being 
implemented by an alternative governmental entity, then only indicate the best management practice under the minimum control 
measure. 

4. Provide a summary of any stormwater activities and known construction activities that will be covered under the authority of the 
MS4 permit that are scheduled to begin during the next reporting period.   

5. Provide a description of any changes to the stormwater management plan report, best management practices, measurable goals, 
and the iterative process that have occurred during the covered reporting period.   

6. Provide a list of best management practices that were evaluated during the covered reporting period, and provide information on 
how the best management practice was determined effective.   

a. If any of the best management practices were determined to be ineffective, provide a summary on how the 
ineffective best management practice was resolved.   

7. If any water samples were collected and analyzed during the covered reporting period by the permitted MS4 or on behalf of the 
permitted MS4, please complete Part D – Water Sample(s) Analysis.   

Part D – WATER SAMPLE(S) ANALYSIS  
PARAMETER OR INDICATOR FREQUENCY RESULT DRY WEATHER SAMPLE? WET WEATHER SAMPLE? 

  
 

 
  Yes    No    Yes    No   

 
 

   Yes    No    Yes    No   
 
 

   Yes    No    Yes    No   
 
 

   Yes    No    Yes    No   
 
 

   Yes    No    Yes    No  
    Yes    No    Yes    No  
    Yes    No    Yes    No   
    Yes    No   Yes    No   
1.  Are any of the parameters being sampled due to the MS4 being subject to an established or approved Total Maximum Daily Load?  

 Yes    No   
If yes, please indicate the parameter/pollutant.     
 
 
 

2.  Does the data support water quality attainment or support trend data toward water quality attainment?  
 Yes    No   

If yes, please describe.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
MO 780-1846 (10-16)   

216

WS #5.



 
Part E – TOTAL MAXIMUM DAILY LOAD (TMDL) ASSUMPTIONS AND REQUIREMENTS ATTAINMENT PLAN 

1.  Is your MS4 subject to an established or approved TMDL?  If no, please indicate “No” below and do not complete any other portion 
of the TMDL Assumptions and Requirements Attainment Plan portion of this report.   
 

 Yes    No   
2.  Has your TMDL Assumptions and Requirements Attainment Plan been completed and submitted?  If no, please provide a summary 
as an attachment on the progress toward submitting and implementing the TMDL Assumptions and Requirements Attainment Plan.   
 

 Yes    No   
3.  Has your TMDL Assumptions and Requirements Attainment Plan received approval from the department?  If yes, please provided a 
summary of the status of the plan and include implementation status of identified best management practices and measurable goals 
along with any changes to best management practices or measurable goals (if applicable).. 
 

 Yes    No   
4.  Does the TMDL Assumptions and Requirements Attainment Plan incorporate Integrated Planning?  If yes, please provide a 
summary of the status of the Integrated Plan. 
 

 Yes    No   
PART F – SUBMIT REPORT TO: 

Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Water Protection Program 
MS4 Program Coordinator 
P.O. Box 176 
Jefferson City, MO 65102-0176 
PART G - CERTIFICATION 
I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance 
with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry 
of the person or persons who manage the system, or those persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information 
submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for 
submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations. 
SIGNATURE OR PERMITTEE (LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE PERSON) 
 
 
 

DATE SIGNED 

NAME (PRINTED OR TYPED) 
 
 
 

TITLE 

MO 780-1846 (10-16)   

217

WS #5.



218

WS #5.



219

WS #5.



220

WS #5.



221

WS #5.



222

WS #5.



223

WS #5.



224

WS #5.



225

WS #5.



226

WS #5.



227

WS #5.



228

WS #5.



229

WS #5.



230

WS #5.



231

WS #5.



232

WS #5.



233

WS #5.



234

WS #5.



235

WS #5.



236

WS #5.



237

WS #5.



238

WS #5.



239

WS #5.



240

WS #5.



241

WS #5.



242

WS #5.



243

WS #5.



244

WS #5.



245

WS #5.



246

WS #5.



247

WS #5.



248

WS #5.



249

WS #5.



250

WS #5.



251

WS #5.



252

WS #5.



253

WS #5.



254

WS #5.



255

WS #5.


	Top
	WS #1.	Review of a Change Order #1 for the CDBG demolition project on first 23 houses
	Change order Summary Sheet
	Moberly demo change order #1

	WS #2.	Appointment to the Tourism Advisory Commission
	Tourism advisory appt
	Janie Riley
	Tourism Commission Signed Letter

	WS #3.	A Request for Street Closure for Chamber of Commerce Banquet to hold their annual Chamber Banquet on May 1, 2021
	Chamber Annual Banquet Request
	2021 Banquet Street Closure

	WS #4.	Appointment to the Historic Preservation Commission
	Historic Preservation appt
	carolee
	Doug Sharp

	WS #5.	Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System Stormwater Management Plan
	2-16-2021 Summary Sheet, Stormwater Management Plan Update
	Stormwater Management Plan Update Council Memo, Summary 2-9-21
	Final Moberly MS4 SWMP 8.29.18
	Municipal Seperate Storm Sewer System Stormwater Management Plan - DRAFT

	Bottom

